

Suggested Resources in Church Music and Related Fields

www.PresbyMusic.org

Presbyterian Association of Musicians 100 Witherspoon Street Louisville KY 40202-1396

502-569-5288 (toll free) 1-888-728-7228 xt 5288 email: pam@pcusa.org fax: 502-569-8465

THE PAM MISSION STATEMENT

The Presbyterian Association of Musicians (PAM) educates, enriches, and engages its membership in humanity's chief end: to glorify and enjoy God forever.

(Adopted July 2014)

PAM publishes periodicals and resource lists, sponsors conferences, and provides professional recognition through a certification program recognized by the Presbyterian Church (U.S.A.).

Revision date: June 2015

© 2004-2016 Presbyterian Association of Musicians

TABLE OF CONTENTS

AFRICAN-AMERICAN SACRED MUSIC	5
ARCHITECTURE	8
Space & Design	8
Acoustics	
CHILDREN IN WORSHIP	11
CHORAL METHODS	17
Children's & Youth Choirs	17
Choir-Building	22
Conducting	23
Diction & Pronunciation	26
Vocal Pedagogy	27
Diction & Vocal Care	29
CHURCH MUSIC - HISTORY AND PRACTICE	30
CONGREGATIONAL SINGING	33
COPYRIGHT	34
DEVOTIONAL/INSPIRATIONAL MATERIALS	
HANDBELLS	
Equipment	37
HYMNODY	38
Hymnology	38
Hymnal Companions & Commentaries	40
DENOMINATIONAL HYMNALS, COLLECTIONS, &	
SUPPLEMENTS	
NON-DENOMINATIONAL HYMNALS & COLLECTIONS	46
HYMNARIES & COLLECTIONS -	
INDIVIDUAL AUTHORS OR COMPOSERS	47
INSTRUMENTAL MUSIC IN WORSHIP	51
LECTIONARY/PLANNING GUIDES	51
LITURGICAL ARTS	
Dance	
Drama	55

Language	. 56
Textile Art	. 56
Visual Art	
MUSIC HISTORY & REFERENCE	. 58
MUSIC MINISTRY	. 59
MUSIC THEORY	. 61
ORCHESTRATION	. 62
ORFF METHODS / SUPPLIERS	. 62
ORGAN	. 63
Organ Literature & Repertory	. 63
Organ Method & Pedagogy	. 63
Organ Purchase	
ORGAN / CARILLON EQUIPMENT:	. 66
Pipe Organs	
Electronic Organs	. 66
Carillons: Cast Bells & Electronic	. 66
PROFESSIONAL CONCERNS - EMPLOYMENT	. 67
PROFESSIONAL ORGANIZATIONS	. 68
PROFESSIONAL PUBLICATIONS	. 69
PSALMODY: PSALTERS	. 70
PSALM PERFORMANCE PRACTICE	. 73
PSALMS IN THE LITURGY	. 73
SOURCES: PUBLISHERS, SUPPLIERS, & WEBSITES	. 74
Publishers	. 74
Suppliers	. 75
Websites	
WORLD MUSIC	
WORSHIP & LITURGY	. 76

This list of suggested resources is not intended to be inclusive of every book and article written on church music. There has been no attempt to include only material that is currently in print for that would have excluded many excellent resources that can be found in college, university, seminary and public libraries.

AFRICAN-AMERICAN SACRED MUSIC

- Abington, James. Let Mount Zion Rejoice: Music in the African American Church. Valley Forge: Judson Press, 2001.
- Abington, James and H. Linda Hollies. *Waiting to Go: African American Church Worship Resources*. Chicago, IL: GIA Publications, 2002.
- Abington, James, Editor. *Readings in African American Church Music and Worship*. Chicago, IL, GIA Publications, 2001.
- Anyike, C. James. *Historical Christianity African Centered*. Chicago, IL: Fortress Press, 2000.
- **Boyer, Horace Clarence.** *How Sweet the Sound: The Golden Age of Gospel.* Washington, DC: Elliot and Clark Publishers, 1995.
- **Carpenter, Delores.** *African American Heritage Hymnal.* Chicago, IL: GIA Publications, 2001.
- Cone, James H. The Spirituals and the Blues: an Interpretation. Seabury Press: New York, NY. 1972. Reprint. Greenwood Press: Westport, CT. 1980.
- **Costen, Melva Wilson.** *African American Christian Worship.* Nashville, TN: Abingdon Press, 1990.
- Courlander, Harold. Negro Folk Music, USA. Columbia University Press: New York, NY. 1963.
- **Dudley, Grenae and Carlyle F. Stewart.** Celebrations for the African American Church. Cleveland: United Church Press, 1997.
- **Duggan, Cheryl A.** *Exorcising Evil: A Womanist Perspective on the Spirituals.* Mary Knoll, NY: Orbis Books, 1997.
- Hancock, Eugene Wilson. Organ Music of Black Composers. 2nd edition. Includes, booklet and cassette. Order from American Guild of Organists, 475 Riverside Drive, Suite 1260, New York, NY 10015. 1992.

Hollies, H. Linda. *Trumpet in Zion, Worship Resources,* Year (A). Cleveland, Ohio: Pilgrim Press, 2001.

Trumpet in Zion, Worship Resources, Year (B). Cleveland, Ohio: Pilgrim Press, 2001.

. *Trumpet in Zion, Worship Resources,* Year (C). Cleveland, Ohio: Pilgrim Press, 2001.

- Hurston, Zola Neale. The Sanctified Church. Berkley, CA: Turtle Island Publications, 1981.
- Jackson, George Pullen. White and Negro Spirituals: Their Life Span and Kinship. J. J. Augustin: New York, NY. 1943. Reprint. Da Capo Press: NY. 1975.
- Jackson, Irene. Afro-American Religious Music: A Bibliography and a Catalogue of Gospel Music. Greenwood Press: Westport, CT. 1979.
- Johnson, James W. and Johnson, J. Rosamond, eds. *The Book of American Spirituals*. Viking Press: New York, NY. 1926. Reprint. Da Capo Press: NY. 1977.
- **Jones, Arthur C. and Vincent Harding.** *Wade in the Water*. Orbis Books, 1999.
- Mapson, J. Wendell, Jr. Strange Fire: A Study of Worship and Liturgy in African American Church. St. Louis: Hodale Press.
- McKay, V. Michael. To Tell the Truth: A Compilation of Inspirations Abut the Birth of Songs from the Heart, Soul and Mind of a Storyteller. Chicago, IL: GIA Publications, 2002.
- **Paris, Peter J.** *The Spirituality of Africa Proples: The Search for a Common Moral Discourse.* Minneapolis: Fortress Press, 1993.
- **Reagon, Bernice Johnson.** *We'll Understand it Better By and By: Pioneering African American Gospel Composers.* Washington, DC: Smithsonian Institution Press, 1992.
- **Ricks, George A.** Some Aspects of the Religious Music of the United States Negro. Ayer Co. Publishers: NY. 1977.
- Southern, Eileen. *Music of Black Americans*. W. W. Norton: New York, NY. 1983.
- **Spencer, Jon Michael.** *Black Sacred Music: A Journal of Theomusicology.* Durham: Duke University Press.

. Black Hymnody: A Hymnological AHistory of the African-American Church. Knoxville: University of Tennessee Press, 1992.

Protest and Praise:	[•] Sacred Music of Blac	k Religion. Minneapolis
Fortress Press, 1990.		

. Readings in Black American Music. Norton: New York, NY. 1983.

Sing a New Song: Liberating Black Hymnody. Minneapolis: Fortress Press, 1995.

Spencer, Michael Jon., Editor. *The Nathaniel Dett Reader: Readings in Black Sacred Music*. Durham, NC: Duke University Press, 1991.

Walker, Wyatt Tee. Somebody's Calling My Name: Black Sacred Music and Social Change. Judson Press: Valley Forge, PA. 1995.

. Spirits that Dwell in Deep Woods. James Abington, Editor. Chicago: GIA Publications, 2003.

ARCHITECTURE

Architecture: Space & Design

- **Bouyer, Louis.** *Liturgy and Architecture.* University of Notre-Dame Press: South Bend, IN. 1967.
- Bruggink & Droppers. Christ and Architecture. Eerdmans Publishers: Grand Rapids, MI. 1965.
- **Bruggink, Donald J. and Droppers, Carl H.** *When Faith Takes Form: Contemporary Churches of Architectural Integrity in America.* Eerdmans Publishers: Grand Rapids, MI. 1971.

Church Architecture. The Hymn. Special Issue.

- *Church Architecture. Reformed Liturgy and Worship 22*, No. 2 Spring, 1988. Office of Theology & Worship, 100 Witherspoon St., Louisville, KY 42020.
- Church Building Program: Planning Space for Worship. 2nd ed. Office of Architecture, United Methodist Church, 475 Riverside Dr., Room 307, New York, NY 10115.
- Hammond, Peter. *Liturgy and Architecture*. Columbia University Press: New York, NY. 1961.
- Kilde, Jeanne Halgren. Sacred Power, Sacred Space, An Introduction to Christian Architecture and Worship. Oxford University Press: New York, NY. 2008.
- **Norman, Edward.** *The House of God: Church Architecture, Style and History.* Thames and Hudson: New York, NY. 1990.
- **Novinski, Lyle.** *Shaping Space*. Published concurrently with the retrospective exhibition Shaping Space: Recollections of a Lifework. The Art of Lyle Novinski sponsored by the Beatrice Haggerty Gallery of the University of Dallas: Irving, TX., 2003.
- *Office of Theology and Worship. Liturgical Space.* Reformed Liturgy & Music 16, No. 2, Office of Theology & Worship, 100 Witherspoon St., Louisville, KY: Presbyterian Church, 1982.
- Sovik, Edward. Architecture for Worship. Augsburg Publishing: Minneapolis, MN. 1973.

. *Acoustics*. Edited by David Philippart. Meeting House Essays: Architecture & Arts for Liturgy Series. Liturgy Translation Pub. 1992.

- **Tillich, Paul.** *On Art and Architecture*. Edited by John and Jane Dillenberger. Crossroad: New York. 1987.
- **Torgerson, Mark A.** An Architecture of Immanence. Architecture for Worship and Ministry Today. Wm. B. Eerdmans Pub. Co.: Grand Rapids, MI. 2007.
- Vosko, Richard. S. God's House Is Our House. Re-imagining the Environment for Worship. Liturgical Press: Collegeville, MN. 2006.
- White, James F. and White, Susan J. Church Architecture: Building and Renovating for Christian Worship. Nashville: Abingdon Press, 1988.
- White, Susan J. Art, Architecture and Liturgical Reform: The Liturgical Arts Society 1928-1972. New York: Pueblo Publishing, 1990.

Architecture: Acoustics

Doschek, Anthony. "Room Acoustics." Diapason (March 1978): 10-14.

- Egan, M. David. Architectural Acoustics. McGraw Hill Book Company: New York, NY. 1988.
- Foster, Thomas. "Acoustics in Worship Spaces: Preparing for Sound Improvement." The American Organist (September 1981): 60.
- **Geerdes, Harold.** *Worship Space Acoustics: A Guide to Better Sound in Your Parish.* The Pastoral Press: Washington DC
- Holtkamp, Walter. "Carpeting and Singing." The American Organist (March 1986): 39.
- **Ingram, Donald** and others. Acoustics in Worship Spaces. American Guild of Organists Pamphlet. Available from AGO, 475 Riverside Drive, Suite 1260, New York, NY 10015.
- Kleiner, Mendel; Klepper, David Lloyd; Torres, Rendell R. Worship Space Acoustics (Acoustics: Information and Communication Series). J. Ross Publishing, Inc.: Ft. Lauderdale, FL. 2010.
- Lubman, David and Wetherill, Ewart A., eds. *Acoustics of Worship Spaces*. Acoustical Society of America, New York, NY. 1985.
- **Riedel, Scott R.** *Acoustics in the Worship Space*. Church Music Pamphlet Series. Concordia: 3558 South Jefferson Ave., St. Louis, MO 63118.

Schalk, Carl. "A Lament for Resounding Praise." The Christian Century. (March 23-30, 1983): 269-271.

Visser, Peter A. "Organ Planning for Architects." Diapason (August 1985): 9.

CHILDREN IN WORSHIP

- Albing, Mary E.F. Seasons To Celebrate: God's Children Celebrate the Church Year. Minneapolis, MN: Augsburg Fortress, 1994.
- Alberswerth, Roy F. and Deborah Alberswerth Payden. *Talking With Your Child About.* . . . *THE CHURCH YEAR.* Cleveland, OH: United Church Press, 1992.
- Armstrong, Lance. Children in Worship: The Road to Faith. Melbourne, Australia: The Joint Board of Christian Education, 1988.
- Anderson, Caig V. Talking With Your Child About... THE BIBLE. Cleveland, OH: United Church Press, 1992.
- **Batchelder, David B.** All Through the Day, All Through the Year: Family Prayers and Celebrations. Minneapolis, MN: Augsburg Fortress, 2000.
- Benson, Dennis and Stan J. Steward. The Ministry of the Child. Nashville, Abingdon Press, 1979.
- Berryman, Jerome. Godly Play. San Francisco: Harper Collins Publisher, 1991.
- **Boling, Ruth.** *Come Worship With Me, A Journey through the Church Year.* Louisville, KY: Geneva Press, 2001.
- **Bradner, John.** *Symbols: Of Church Seasons & Days.* Harrisburg, PA: Morehouse Publishing, 1977. Seventh Printing 1997.
- Boling, Ruth, Lauren J. Muzzy, and Laurie A. Vance. A Children's Guide to Worship. Louisville: Geneva Press, 1998.
- Bragg, Joseph H., editor. *Moments with Children in Worship through the Church Year*. St. Louis: CSP Press.
- Brokering, Lois. *Rainbow Bags*. Minneapolis: Augsburg Publishing House, 1986.
- **Brown, Carolyn C.** *Sharing the Easter Faith with Children*. Nashville, TN: Abingdon Press. 2005.
 - . Gateways to Worship: A Year of Worship Experience for Young Children. Nashville: Abingdon Press, 1989.

. Forbid them Not: Involving children in Sunday Worship. Based on the Common Lectionary, Year (C). Nashville: Abingdon Press, 1991.

. Forbid them Not: Involving children in Sunday Worship. Based on the Common Lectionary, Year (A). Nashville: Abingdon Press, 1992.

Forbid them Not: Involving children in Sunday Worship. Based on the Common Lectionary, Year (B) . Nashville: Abingdon Press, 1993.

. You Can Preach to the Kids, Too!: Designing Sermons for Adults and Children. Nashville: Abingdon Press, 1991.

_____. *God's People Worship*. Logos curriculum course 4. Pittsburgh, Youth Club Program, Inc. 1989.

Caldwell, Elizabeth Francis. Come Unto Me: Rethinking the Sacraments for Children. Cleveland: United Church Press, 1996.

Castleman, Robbie. Parenting in the Pew: Guiding Your Children into the Joy of Worship. Downers Grove, IL: Intervarsity Press, 1993.

Cavaletti, Sofia. *The Religious Potential of the Child.* Chicago, IL: Liturgy Training Publications, 1992.

Cloyd, Betty Shannon. *Children and Prayer, A Shared Pilgrimage*. Nashville, TN: Upper Room Books, 1997.

Coles, Robert. *The Spiritual Life of Children.* Boston: Houghton Mifflin Col, 1990.

Cully, Iris V. Children in the Church. Philadelphia, PA: The Westminster Press (No date).

. Christian Child Development. San Francisco, CA: Harper & Row, Publishers, 1979.

- **Dawn, Marva J.** *Is it a Lost Cause? Having the Heart of God for the Church's Children.* Grand Rapids, MI: Wm. B. Eerdmans Publishing Co., 1997.
- **Duckert, Mary.** *Together at the Table: Children in the Congregation.* Philadelphia: The Geneva Press, 1982.

. New Kid in the Pew: Shared Ministry with Children. Louisville: Westminster /JohnKnox Press, 1991.

Edwards, Sandra Vasel. *Talking With Your Child About* . . . *WORSHIP*. New York, NY: United Church Press, 1990.

- **Eibner, Janet Marshall, and Walker, Susan Graham.** God, Kids, & Us. The Growing Edge of Ministry with Children and the People Who Care for Them. Etobicoke, Ontario: United Church Publishing House (Anglican Book Centre, Toronto, Ontario), 1996.
- **Fogel, Jeanne S.** *Signs of God's Love Baptism and Communion, 1984.* And Symbols of God's Love Codes and Passwords, 1986. Philadelphia: The Geneva Press.

. Seasons of Gods Love - The Church Year. Philadelphia, PA: The Geneva Press, 1988.

- Funk, Virgil C., Editor. *Pastoral Music in Practice 2: Children, Liturgy, and Music*. Washington, DC: The Pastoral Press, 1990.
- Getty-Sullivan, Mary Ann. God Speaks to Us in Water Stories, 1996. God Speaks to Us in Feeding Stories, 1997. Collegeville, MN: Liturgical Press, 1996.
- Gilbert, Anne. Age Group Characteristics. Brea, CA: Educational Ministries, Inc., 1991.
- Gillespie, Bailey V. *The Experience of Faith*. Birmingham, AL: Religious Education Press, 1988.
- **Gobbell, Roger and Philip C. Huber.** *Creative Designs with Children at Worship.* Atlanta: John Knox Press, 1981.

Grimes, Nikki. Come Sunday! Grand Rapids, MI: 49503.

- Halmo, Joan. Celebrating the Church Year with Young Children. Collegeville, MN: The Liturgical Press (Ottawa, Canada, Novalis), 1988.
- Halverson, Delia. How Do Our Children Grow? Introducing Children to God, Jesus, the Bible, Prayer, Church. Nashville, TN: Abingdon Press, 1993.
- Hanson, Richard Simon. Worshiping with the Child. Nashville: Abingdon Press, 1988.
- Henderson, Dorothy. 45 Ways to Involve Children in Worship. Ontario: Presbyterian Church in Canada, 1997.
- Hickman, Hoyt L. A Primer for Church Worship. Nashville, TN: Abingdon Press, 1984.
- Huesser, D.B. and Phyllis Heusser. *Children as Partners in the Church.* Valley Forge: Judson Press, 1985.
- **Ingram, Kristen Johnson.** *Family Worship Through the Year*. Valley Forge: Judson Press, 1984.
- Jansen, John F. Let Us Worship God: An Interpretation for Families. Richmond, VA: CLC Press, 1966.
- Johnson, Miriam J. Inside Twenty-Five Classic Children's Stories. New York: Paulist Press, 1986.

. Inside Twenty-Five More Classic Children's Stories. New York: Paulist Press, 1988.

- Juengst, Sara Covin. Sharing the Faith with Children: Rethinking the Children's Sermon. Louisville: Westminster/John Knox Press, 1994.
- Keeley, Robert J. Helping Our Children Grow in Faith: How the Church Can Nurture the Spiritual Development of Kids. Grand Rapids, MI: Baker Books, 2008.
- Lehn, Cornelia. Involving Children and Youth in Congregational worship. Scottdale, PA: Mennonite Publishing House, 1982.
- LeTord, Bijou. *The River and the Rain*. New York: Bantam Doubleday, 1994.
- Love, Sue, Jean Floyd Love, Mickey Myers and Sylvia Washer. Get Ready! Get Set! Worship! Louisville: Geneva Press, 1999.
- Matthews, Carole S. *The Church: Learning About God's People*. St. Louis, MO.: Concordia Publishing House, 1983.
- May, Scottie, Beth Posterski, Catherine Stonehouse, and Linda Cannell. *Children Matter*. Grand Rapids, MI: William B. Eerdmans Publishing Co., 2005.
- McLarty, Philip W. The Children, Yes! Involving children in Our Congregation's worship. Nashville: Discipleship Resources, 1981.
- Mercer, Joyce Ann. *Welcoming Children: A Practical Theology of Childhood*. St. Louis, MO: Chalice Press. 2005.
- Merritt, David, editor. *Seen and Heard: New Possibilities for Children in the Church*. Melbourne, Australia: Joint Board of Christian Education, 1986.
- Morris, Margie. *Helping Children Feel at Home in Church*. Nashville: Discipleship Resources, 1988.
 - . Helping Children Feel at Home in Church. Nashville, TN: Discipleship Resources, 1988
- **Ng, David and Virginia Thomas.** *Children in the Worshiping Community.* Atlanta: John Knox Press, 1982.
- Noren, Carol M. What Happens Sunday Morning: A Layperson's Guide to Worship Louisville: Westminster/John Knox Press, 1992.
- Norton, Mary Jane Pearce. Children Worship! Nashville: Discipleship Resources, 1997.
- Office of Theology and Worship. Children in Worship. Special Issue of Reformed Liturgy & Worship, Vol. 31, No. 4, Louisville: Presbyterian Church (USA), 1997.

- **Peery, Agnes Junking.** Let All the People: Experiences in Corporate Worship with Children. Abingdon Presbytery Office P. O. Box 317, Wytheville, VA 25482.
- **Post, W. Ellwood.** *Saints, Signs, and Symbols.* Second Edition. Wilton, CT: Morehouse-Barlow Co., 1974.
- **Pritchard, Gretchen Wolff.** *Alleluia! Amen. A Guide to the Holy Eucharist, Rite II. (The Sunday Paper's Communion Book for Children).* New Haven, CT: The Sunday Paper, 1984.
- _____. *Offering the Gospel to Children*, Boston, MA: Cowley Publications, 1992.
- Ramshaw, Gail. Sunday Morning. Chicago: Liturgy Training Publications, 1993.

. Everyday and Sunday, Too. Minneapolis: Augsburg, 1997.

. 1-2-3 Church. Minneapolis: Augsburg, 1996.

- **Rosner, Patrice.** *Consider the Child.* St. Louis: Christian Board of Publication, 1990.
- Sandell, Elizabeth J. Including Children in Worship: A Planning Guide for Congregations. Minneapolis: Augsburg Publishing House, 1991.
- Schalk, Carl. First Person Singular: Reflections on Worship, Liturgy, and Children. St. Louis: MorningStar Music Publishers, 1998.
- Smith, W. Alan. Children Belong in Worship: A Guide to the Children's Sermon. St. Louis: CSP Press, 1984.
- Stake, Donald Wilson. The ABC's of Worship, A Concise Dictionary. Louisville, KY: W/JKP, 1992.
- Stewart, Sonya and Jerome W. Berryman. Young Children & worship. Louisville: Westminster/John Knox Press, 1989.
- Stewart, Stan, Pauline Stewart and Richard Green. Going to Church with Children. Melbourne, Australia: The Joint Board of Christian Education, 1987.
- **Stonehouse, Catherine.** Joining Children on the Spiritual Journey. Nurturing a Life of Faith. Grand Rapids, MI: Baker Books (A Bridge Point Book). 1998.
- **Thomas, Virginia and Betty Davis Miller.** *Children's Literature for All God's Children.* Atlanta: John Knox Press, 1986.

- **Turner, Rosalie.** My Very Own Book of the Lord's Prayer. Nashville: Abingdon Press, 1986.
- **United Church of Canada.** A Place for You: Toward the Integration of Children into the Life of the Church. Toronto: United church of Canada, 1989.
- Ward, Elaine M. *Children and Biblical Stories*. Prescott, AZ: Educational Ministries, Inc., 1993.
 - . *Children and Worship*. Prescott, AZ: Educational Ministries, Inc., 1993.
- Walker, Joyce MacKichan an Carol A. Wehrheim. *Teaching Children: Worship in the Sanctuary.* Louisville, KY: Church Leadership Support Presbyterian Church (U.S.A.), 2004. DVD: *Children in the Sanctuary: Involving Children Fully in the Worship Life of a Congregation.*
- Westerhoff, John H. A Pilgrim People: Learning Through the Church Year. Minneapolis: The Seabury Press, 1984.
- Westerhoff, John H., III. Bringing Up Children in the Christian Faith. San Francisco, CA: Harper & Row Publishers, 1980.
- Wetherwax, John. Learning About Worship, Leader's Guide and Participant's Book. Brea, CA: Educational Ministries, Inc., 1988.
- Whittemore, Carroll E. (Edited by). *Symbols of the Church, Revised Edition*. Nashville, TN: Abingdon Press. 1959.
- Williams, Cassandra, Editor. Children Among Us: Foundations in Children's Ministries. Louisville, KY: Witherspoon Press, 2003.
- Witvliet, John. A Child Shall Lead: Children in Worship, A Sourcebook for Christian Educators, Musicians, and Clergy. Garland, TX: Choristers Guild, 1999. Available from the Lorenz Corporation, Dayton, OH.

CHORAL METHODS

- Ammer, Christine. *Musician's Handbook of Foreign Terms*. G. Schirmer, Inc.: New York, NY. 1971.
- Brinson, Barbara A. Choral Music: Methods and Materials. Developing Successful Choral Programs (Grades 5 to 12). Schirmer Books: New York, NY: 1996.
- **Buchanan, Heather J. with Matthew Mehaffey.** *Teaching Music Through Performance in Choir.* multiple volumes. GIA Publication, Inc.: Chicago, IL. 2006.
- Collins, Don L. *Teaching Choral Music*. Prentice Hall: Upper Saddle River, NJ. 1999.
- **Demorest, Stephen, ed.** Creating the Special World: A Collection of Lectures by Weston H. Noble. GIA Publications, Inc.: Chicago, IL. 2005.
- **Dovaras, Dr. John,** Compiled by. *Choral Settings of the Scriptures with English Texts.* Roger Dean Publishing Company: Dayton, OH. MCMLXXXVIII.
- **Gumm, Alan, ed.** The Choral Director's Cookbook: Insights and Inspired Recipes for Beginners and Experts. Meredith Music Publishers: Galesville MD. 2006.
- Highben, Zebulon M. and Langlois, Kristina M. editors. With a Voice of Singing: Essays on Children, Choirs, and Music in the Church in honor of Ronald A. Nelson. Kirk House Publishers: Minneapolis, MN. 2007.
- Lamb, Gordon H. Choral Techniques (second édition). William C. Brown Company Publishers: Dubuque, IO. 1979.
- McGill, Stan and Elizabeth Volk. Beyond Singing: Blueprint for the Exceptional Choral Program. Hal Leonard Corporation: Milwaukee, WI. 2007.
- **Ulrich, Homer.** A Survey of Choral Music. Harcourt Brace Jovanovich, Inc.: New York, NY. 1973.

Choral Methods: Children & Youth Choirs

Albrecht, Sally K. Compiled and Edited by. *The Choral Warm-up Collection*. Van Nuys, CA: Alfred Publishing Co., Inc., 2003

- Allen, Patrick and Rodland, Catherine. Chorister Training Program of The Royal School of Church Music in America. Adapted from the English Model Sing Aloud. Chicago, IL: GIA Publications, Inc., 1996.
- Althouse, Jay and Robinson, Russell. *The Complete Choral Warm-Up Book.* Van Nuys, CA: Alfred Publishing Co., Inc.,
- Aronoff, Frances Webber. *Music and Young Children*. Holt, Rinehart and Winston: New York, NY. 1969.
- Ashworth-Bartle, Jean. Lifeline for the Children's Choir Directors. Gordon V. Thompson: Toronto, Canada. Reprint. Oxford Press. 1988.
 - *Lifeline for Children's Choir Directors.* Toronto, Canada. Gordon V. Thompson Music. 1988. Newly Revised and Expanded, 1993.

. Sound Advice: Becoming A Better Children's Choir Conductor

(Foreword by Sir David Willcocks). New York, NY: Oxford University Press, Inc., 2003.

- Baldwin, Eileen, Ashworth-Bartle, Jean and Beaupre', Linda. A Young Singer's Journey: An Integrated Approach to Musical Literacy. Book I. Chapel Hill, NC: Hinshaw Music Inc., 2006.
- Bertalot, John. 5 Wheels To Successful Sight-Singing: A Practical Approach to Teach Children (and Adults) to Read Music. Minneapolis, MN: Augsburg Fortress, 1993.

. *How to be a Successful Choir Director*. Buxhall, Stowmarket, Suffolk, IP14 3BW, U.K.: Kevin Mayhew LTD, (info@kevinmayhewltd. com), 2002.

Burkhardt, Michael. *Singing with Understanding.* (Teaching elements of music utilizing hymns and songs of the church. Concordia: St. Louis, MO. 1993.

Cooksey, John. Working with the Adolescent Voice. Concordia: St. Louis, MO. . "The Development of a Contemporary, Eclectic Theory for the Training and Cultivation of the Junior High School Male Changing Voice." Choral Journal (Oct-Dec. 1977): Parts 1, 2, 3.

Dickau, David and Petker, Allan Robert. *Choral Questions and Answers, Vol. I (20 topics relating to voices, High School and Adult Voices).* Anderson, IN: 1990.

. Choral Questions and Answers, Vol. III (for the Rehearsal). Anderson, IN: Pavanne Publishing, 1992.

- **Eberhardt, Carl.** A Practical Guide for Choral Rehearsals. C.F. Peters/ Henry Litolff's Verlag: Frankfurt, London, New York, NY: 1973.
- Edwards, Randy. *Revealing Riches and Building Lives: Youth Choir Ministry in the New Millennium.* St. Louis: MorningStar Publications, 2000.
- Ehmann, Wilhelm and Haasemann. Voice Building for Choirs. Chapel Hill, NC.: Hinshaw Music, Inc., 1982.
- Feierabend, John M. First Steps in Music (Series). Simsbury, CN.: First Steps in Music, Inc., 1996.
- Fortunato, C. Children's Music Ministry. David Cook: 850 North Grove, Elgin, IL. 1981.
- Hassemann, Frauke and Jordan, James M. Group Vocal Technique. Chapel Hill, NC.: Hinshaw Music, Inc., 1991.
 - . Group Vocal Technique, The Vocalise Cards. Chapel Hill, NC.: Hinshaw Music, Inc., 1992.
- Herrington, Judith, Sara Glick, & Allan Petker. Choral Questions and Answers, Vol. II (for Young Voices). Anderson, IN.: Pavane Publishing, 1990.
- Heyge, Lorna; Mathia, Catherine; Robinson, Linda; Sillick, Audrey. God's Children Sing, Music and Movement: Teacher's Guidebook and Resource Materials for Group Instruction (Curriculum). Greensboro, NC., Music Garten, Published by Music Matters, Inc., 1995.
- *Activity Cards. Included with Teacher's Guidebook, etc.,* 1995.
- Hill, David, Parfitt, Hilary & Ash, Elizabeth. *Giving Voice: A Handbook* for Choir Directors & Trainers. Rattlesden, Bury St Edmunds, Suffolk IP30 OSZ, U.K.: Kevin Mayhew LTD, 1995.
- **Ingram, Madeline D.** *A Guide for Youth Choirs*. Abingdon: Nashville, TN. 1967.
- Jacobs, Ruth Krehbiel. *The Successful Children's Choir*. Fortress Press: Philadelphia. 1958. Reprint. Fitzsimmons Publications. 1984.
- Keithahn, Mary Nelson. Our Heritage of Hymns (Leaders' Guide With Resources). Garland, TX (now, Dallas, TX): Choristers Guild, 1986.

. Exploring the Hymnal: Learning Centers and Games for Readers of All Ages. Garland, TX (now, Dallas, TX): Choristers Guild, 1986.

. Our Heritage of Hymns, Series II. Garland, TX (now, Dallas, TX): Choristers Guild, 1989.

Kemp, Helen. *Body, Mind, Spirit, Voice-Developing the Young Singer*. Video. Concordia Pub: St. Louis, MO. 1985.

. *Music in Church Education with Children*. Choristers Guild: Garland, TX. 1970.

. Of Primary Importance, Vols. 1 and 2. Chorister's Guild: 2834 W. Kingsley Rd., Garland, TX 75041.

. Sing and Rejoice-Guiding Young Singers. Video. Concordia Pub: St. Louis, MO. 1985.

- Mayer, Frederick D., and Sacher, Jack. "The Changing Voice." American Choral Review 1965.
- McKenzie, Duncan. Training the Boy's Changing Voice. Rutgers University Press: New Brunswick, NJ. 1956.
- McRae, Shirley. *Directing the Children's Choirs: A Comprehensive Resource*. Schirmer: New York, NY. 1991.

Nelson, Ronald. *The Children's Choir, Parts I and II on cassette*. Available from American Guild of Organists Headquarters, 475 Riverside Drive, Suite 1260, NY 10115.

- Nesheim, Paul with Noble, Weston. Building Beautiful Voices: A Concise, yet comprehensive study of Vocal Technique for the Choral Rehearsal or Private Instruction. No city listed: Roger Dean Publishing Co., 1995.
- Nichols, Kerri Lynn. Rejoice with the Drum & Voice: Church Music for Children. Olympia, WA.: Tree Frog Productions, 2004.

. Let the Little Ones Come: with Voice, Dance & Drum. Olympia, WA.: Kerri-oke Publications/Tree Frog Productions, 2005.

- Nye, Robert Evans and Nye, Vernice Trousdale. Essentials of Teaching Elementary School Music. Englewood Cliffs, NJ.: Prentice-Hall, Inc., 1974.
- Page, Sue Ellen. Hearts and Hands and Voices: Growing In Faith Through Choral Music. Tarzana, CA.: H.T. FitzSimons Co., a division of Fred Bock Music Company, Inc., 1995.

Phillips, Kenneth H. *Teaching Kids to Sing: Exercise and Vocalise Cards.* New York, NY.: Schirmer Books, 1994.

. Teaching Kids to Sing. Schirmer Pub: New York, NY. 1992.

Rao, Doreen. *The Artist in Every Child. Vol. 2.* Copyright for all countries: Boosey & Hawkes, Inc., 1987.

. Choral Music Experience. Vol. 3: The Art in Choral Music. Copyright for all countries: Boosey & Hawkes, Inc., 1990.

. Choral Music Experience. Vol. 4: Education through Artistry. Teaching Children through Choral Music Experience. Copyright for all countries: Boosey & Hawkes, Inc., 1991.

_____. We Will Sing!: Choral Music Experience for Classroom Choirs. Copyright for all countries: Boosey & Hawkes, Inc., 1993.

Rhoades, Keith. *Musical Training for Choristers*. Royal School of Church Music: Croydon. 1987.

Roach, Donald W. Handbook for Children's and Youth Choir Directors. Garland, TX (now, Dallas, TX): Choristers Guild. 1987.

Robinson, Russell and Althouse, Jay. *The Complete Choral Warm-Up Book: A Sourcebook for Choral Directors.* Van Nuys, CA.: Alfred Publishing Co., Inc., MCMXCV.

Rotermund, Donald ed. Children Sing His Praise. Concordia: St. Louis, MO.

Sauchuk, Jessy. *Dictionary of Musical Terms*. Danvers, MA: Santorella Publications, LTD., 2000.

Steen, Arvida. Exploring Orff: A Teacher's Guide. New York, NY.: Schott Music Corporation, 1992.

Scott, Lesbia. ISing A Song Of The Saints of God. Harrisburg, PA.: Morehouse Publishing, No date listed. Purchased 1999.

Stultz, Marie. Innocent Sounds: Building Choral Tone and Artistry in Your Children's Choir. St. Louis, MO.: MorningStar Music Publishers (Birnamwood Publications), 1999.

. Innocent Sounds: Building Choral Tone and Artistry in Your Children's Choir, Book I: The Singer's Journey Begins. Fenton, MO.: MorningStar Music Publishers, 2007.

- Shenenberger, Marilyn and Jordan, James. Evoking Sound: The Choral Warm-UP: Core Vocal Exercises. Accompanist Supplement with CD. Chicago, IL.: GIA Publications, Inc. 2004.
- Swanson, Frederick J. The Male Singing Voice Ages Eight to Eighteen. Laurance Press: Cedar Rapids, Iowa. 1977.

- Swears, Linda. *Teaching the Elementary School Chorus*. West Nyack, NY.: Parker Publishing Company, Inc., 1985.
- **Telfer, Nancy.** *Nancy Telfer's Choral Curriculum Guide: An Audio Workshop.* San Diego, CA.: Neil A. Kjos Music Company, No date listed.
- Wright, Kathryn S. Let the Children Sing Music in Religious Education. Seabury Press: New York, NY.
- Wustrow, Michael, Compiled by. Recruitment & Organization: Ideas for Children's & High School Youth Choirs. Problem Solver Series. Garland, TX (now Dallas, TX): Choristers Guild, 1998.
- Wyton, Alec. *What We Should Expect from Young People*. Suggestions for working with children and adult choirs. AGO Pamphlet: 475 Riverside Dr., Suite 1260, New York, NY 10115.
- **Yarrington, Donald.** Building the Youth Choir: Training and Motivating Teenage Singers. Augsburg: Minneapolis, MN. 1990.

Choral Methods: Choir-Building

- Are, Thomas L. *Faithsong*. The Westminster Press: Philadelphia, PA. 1981. . *Please Don't Ask Me to Sing in the Choir*. Hope Publishing: Carol Stream, IL.
- **Balko, Eldon.** *Letters to My Choir. Church Music Pamphlet Series.* Augsburg: Minneapolis.
- Faulkner, Quentin. *Choir Rehearsal Prayers*. Morning Star: 3303 Meramec, Suites 205-207, St. Louis, MO 63118. 1990.
- Halter, C. The Christian Choir Member. Concordia: St. Louis, MO. 1992.
- **Osbeck, Kenneth W.** *Devotional Warm-Ups for the Church Choir.* Kregel Publications: Grand Rapid, MI, 1985.
- _____. *Pocket Guide for Church Choir Members*. Kregel Pub: Grand Rapids, MI. 1984.
- Peterson, Paul K. The Second Voice: Devotions for Church Musicians. MorningStar: St. Louis, MO. 1993.
- Westermeyer, Paul. The Church Musician. Revised Edition: Augsburg Fortress: Minneapolis, 1997.
- **Wold, Wayne.** *Preaching to the Choir: The Care and Nurture of the Church Choir.* Minneapolis: Augsburg Fortress, 2003.

Choral Methods: Conducting

- Adler, Samuel. Choral Conducting: An Anthology. Holt, Rinehart and Winston, Inc.: New York, NY. 1971. 2nd edition. Schirmer Books. 1985.
- Bertalot, John. John Bertalot's Immediately Practical Tips for Choral Directors. Augsburg Fortress: Minneapolis, MN. 2004.

. *Teaching Adults to Sight Sing*. Kevin Mayhew LTD: Buxhall, Stowmarket, Suffolk, UK. 2004.

Boonshaft, Peter Loel. *Teaching Music with Passion: Conducting, Rehearsing and Inspiring.* Meredith Music Publications, a division of G.W. Music, Inc.: Galesville, MD. 2006.

. *Teaching Music with Purpose: Conducting, Rehearsing and Inspiring.* Meredith Music Publications, a division of G.W. Music, Inc.: Galesville, MD. 2006.

- **Busch, Brian R.,** *The Complete Choral Conductor: Gesture and Method.* Schirmer Books: New York, NY. a division of Macmillian, Inc 1984.
- **Butt, Dr. John, Editor.** *The Sacred Music of J.S. Bach, A Handbook.* Published by Paraclete Press: Brewster, MA. 1997.

Christensen, Helga. *Better Choir Singing*. Choristers Guild: Dallas, TX. 1973. Conlon, Joan. *Choral Techniques, Part I and II*. Two Cassettes. Available

- from AGO Headquarters, 475 Riverside Dr., Ste 1260, New York, NY 10115.
- Dakers, Lionel. *The Church Musician as Conductor*. RCSM: Croydon, London.
- **Davidson, Archibald T.** *Choral Conducting.* Harvard Univ. Press: Cambridge, MA. 1962.
- Decker, Harold A. and Herford, Julius. Choral Conducting: A Symposium. Prentice Hall, Inc.: Englewood Cliffs, NJ. 1973. 2nd edition, 1988.
- Ehly, Dr. Eph. *Excellence in Conducting*, Volume 1-Technique. video. Hal Leonard Pub. 08414140.
- Ehly, Dr. Eph. *Excellence in Conducting*, Volume 2-Expressivity. video. Hal Leonard Pub. 08414150.
- Ehmann, Wilhelm. *Choral Directing*. Augsburg Publishing: Minneapolis, MN. 1968.

Ehret, Walter. *The Choral Conductor's Handbook*. Edward B. Marks Music Corporation (Belwin Mills). Melville, NY. MCMLIX.

- Garretson, Robert L. Conducting Choral Music (sixth edition). Prentice Hall, Inc.: Englewood Cliffs, NJ. 1988.
- **González, Marilyn M.** *Choir Care.* Deals with vocal pedagogy and practical aspects of working with volunteer choirs. Available from American Guild of Organists, 475 Riverside Dr., Suite 1260, New York, NY 10115.
- Green, Elizabeth A.H. and Mark Gibson. *The Modern Conductor seventh edition*. Pearson-Prentice Hall: Upper Saddle River, NJ. 2004.
- Haberlen, John. Mastering Conducting Techniques. Mark Foster Music Company. 1977.
- Hefferman, Charles W. Choral Music: Technique and Artistry. Prentice-Hall, Inc.: Englewood Cliffs, NJ. 1982.
- Hill, David with Hilary Jones & Elizabeth Ash. *Training Your Choir*. Second Edition. Kevin Mayhew LTD: Buxhall, Stowmarket, Suffolk, IP14 3BW, UK. 2007.
- Holst, Imogen. Conducting a Choir, A Guide for Amateurs. Oxford Press: London. 1973.
- Jeffers, Ron. *Translations and Annotations of Choral Repertoire*. Volume I: Sacred Latin Texts. Corvallis, OR: Earthsongs, 1988.
- Jordan, James. Evoking Sound: Fundamentals of Choral Conducting and Rehearsing. GIA Publications, Inc.: Chicago, IL. 1996.
 - *Evoking Sound: The Choral Warm-Up: Methods, Procedures, Planning, And Core Vocal Exercises.* CD enclosed. GIA Publications, Inc.: Chicago, IL. 2005.
- _____. Evoking Sound: The Choral Warm-Up: Teaching and Rehearsal Cards. GIA Publications, Inc.: Chicago, IL. 2005.
- Jordan, James and Matthew Mehaffey. Choral Ensemble Intonation: Method, Procedures and Exercises. GIA Publications, Inc.: Chicago, IL. 2001.
- **Jordan, James, Shenenberger, Marilyn.** *Ear Training Immersion Exercises for Choirs.* Conductor's Edition with CD. A Companion to Choral Ensemble Intonation. GIA Publications, Inc.: Chicago, IL. 2004.
 - *Ear Training Immersion Exercises for Choirs. Ensemble Edition. A Companion to Choral Ensemble Intonation.* GIA Publications, Inc.: Chicago, IL. 2004.
- **Kemp, Michael.** *The Choral Challenge: Practical Paths to Solving Problems.* GIA Publications: Chicago, IL. 2009.

- Lawrence, Douglas. 101 Things to Say To Your Choir To Improve Their Sound 100%. Volume 1: The Use of Verbal Imagery in Rehearsal. Volume 2: Choral Development. Volume 3: Community Building and Parenting a Choir. 3 videos. Thomas House Publications: P.O. Box 1423, San Carlos, CA. 94070.
- Leck, Henry with Flossie Jordan. Creating Artistry: Through Choral Excellence. Hal Leonard Corporation: Milwaukee, WI. 2009.
- Marissen, Michael. Bach's Oratorios: The Parallel German-English Texts with Annotations. Oxford University Press, Inc.: New York, NY. 2008.
- McClung, Alan C. Moveable Tonic: A Sequenced Sight-Singing Method. GIA Publications, Inc.: Chicago, IL. 2008.
- Meier, Gustave. The Score, The Orchestra, and the Conductor. Oxford University Press, Inc.: New York, NY. 2009.
- Miles, Maurice. Are you beating Two or Four? Some hints to help you make up your mind. Novello and Co., Limited: Borough Green, Sevenoaks, Kent, UK. 1977.
- McElheran, Brock. Conducting Technique for Beginners and Professionals. Oxford University Press: London. 1989.
- Moe, Daniel. *Basic Choral Concepts*. Augsburg Publishing House: Minneapolis, MN. 1972.
 - . *Problems in Conducting. Revised Edition.* Augsburg Publishing House: Minneapolis, MN. 1973.
- Moses, Don and Robert Demaree. Face to Face with an Orchestra. Prestige Publications, Inc.: Princeton, NJ. 1987.
- **Pfautsch, Lloyd.** *Coming Alive: Choral Directing.* Video. Augsburg: Minneapolis, MN. Preston, Simon. Handel: Messiah and Israel in Egypt. History, Performance and Rehearsal Techniques. Two cassettes. American Guild of Organist Headquarters: 475 Riverside Drive, Suite 1260, New York, NY 10115.

. *Mental Warmups for the Choral Director*. Lawson-Gould Music Publishers, Inc.: New York, NY. 1969.

- Phillips, Kenneth H. Directing the Choral Music Program. Oxford University Press: New York, NY. 2004.
- Robinson, Ray, and Winold, Allen. *The Choral Experience*. Harper's College Press a department of Harper & Row Publishers, Inc. 1976.

Rudolph, Max. *The Grammar of Conducting*. G. Schirmer, Inc.: New York, NY. 1950. Revised. 1969.

. The Grammar of Conducting: A Practical Guide to Baton Technique and Orchestral Interpretation. Schirmer: New York, NY. 1980.

Sanders, Vernon. *A Conductor's Handbook*. Thomas House Publications: P.O. Box 1423, San Carlos, CA. 94070.

Schultz, Ralph C. Leading the Choir: A Guide for the Inexperienced Choir Director. Manual and Video tape. Concordia: St. Louis, MO.

- Sharp, Timothy W. Precision Conducting: Achieving Choral Blend and Balance. Roger Dean Publishing Company: Dayton, OH. 2005.
- Shaw, Robert. Carnegie Hall Presents Robert Shaw; Conducting a Masterpiece German Requiem. Part I and Part II. Two videos. Carnegie Hall Corp. 891-199.
- **Stanton, Royal.** *The Dynamic Choral Conductor*. Shawnee Press, Inc.: Delaware Water Gap, PA. MCMLXXI.
- **Thomas, Kurt.** English Adaptation by Alfred Mann and William H. Reese. The Choral Conductor: The Technique of Choral Conducting in Theory and Practice. Associated Music Publishers, Inc.: New York, NY.1971.
- Webb, Guy B. ed. Up Front!: Becoming the Complete Choral Conductor. E.C. Schirmer Music Company: Boston, MA. 1993.
- Willetts, Sandra. *Conducting: the Physical Technique*. Video and workbook. Order from Gemini Enterprises, P.O. Box 158214, Nashville, TN 37215. Available through Cokesbury.

Choral Methods: Diction & Pronunciation

- Adams, David. A Handbook of Diction for Singers: Italian, German, French. Second Edition. Oxford University Press: New York, NY. 2008.
- **Angelis, Michael de.** *Correct Pronunciation of Latin*. Augsburg: Minneapolis, MN.
- **Cox, Dr. Richard G.** *The Singer's Manual of German and French Diction.* Schirmer Books: New York, NY. 1970.
- Decker, Harold A., and Kirk, Colleen J. Choral Conducting: Focus on Communication. Prentice Hall: Englewood Cliffs, NJ. 1988.

_____. Choral Conducting: Focus on Communication. Prentice-Hall Publishing, Inc.: Englewood Cliffs, NJ. 1988.

- Hall, William D., ed. Latin Pronunciation According to Roman Usage. National Music Publishers: Tustin, CA. 1971.
- Hines, Robert S. Singers Manual of Latin Diction and Phonetics. Schirmer Books. 1975.
- Marshall, Madeleine. *The Singer's Manual of English Diction*. G. Schirmer, Inc.: New York, NY. 1953.
- Moriarity, John. Diction: Italian, Latin, French, German--the Sounds and 81 Exercises for Singing Them. E. C. Schirmer: Boston. 1975.
- **Pfautsch, Lloyd.** *English Diction for the Singer.* Lawson-Gould Pub: NY. 1971.
- *Pronunciation of Church Latin.* American Guild of Organists Pamphlet: 475 Riverside Drive, Suite 1260, New York, NY 10115.
- Uris, Dorothy. To Sing in English: A Guide to Improved Diction. Boosey and Hawkes: New York, NY. 1971.
- Wall, Joan & Caldwell, Robert. Diction for Singers: Concise Guide to English, Italian, Latin, German, French, and Spanish Pronunciation. 2nd Edition. Pst Inc. 1990.
- **Diction Domain.** www.dictiondomain.org. This is a great website for diction. There are links to language specific sites and many have listening examples.

Choral Methods: Vocal Pedagogy

- Alderson, Richard. Complete Handbook of Voice Training. Parker Publishing Company, Inc.: West Nyack, NY. 1979.
- Body, Mind and Voice: Foundations of Voice Education. Center for Advanced Studies in Music Education. 2000.
- **Davids, Julia and LaTour, Stephen.** Vocal Technique A Guide for Conductors, Teachers, and Singers. Waveland Press, Inc. 2012.

DeVinney, Richard. The Wednesday Workout: Practical Techniques for Rehearsing the Church Choir. Abingdon Press: Nashville, TN. 1993.

- Dickau, David C. and Petker, Allan Robert. Choral Questions and Answers Volume I for Adult Voices. Pavane Publishing distributed by Intrada Music Group, Box 1240, Anderson, IN 46015. 1993.
- _____. *Choral Questions and Answers* (Director's Edition). Pavane Publishing. Distributed by Intrada Music Group: Anderson, IN.1990.
- Ehmann, Wilhelm and Haasemann, Frauke. Voice Building for Choirs. Hinshaw Music, Inc.: P.O. Box 470, Chapel Hill, NC 27514. 1981.
- **Freer, Dr. Patrick.** *Success for Adolescent Singers.* (3 DVD Set). Choral Excellence Press. 2005.
- Glick, Sara Herrington, Judith and Petker, Allan. Choral Questions and Answers Volume II for Young Voices. Pavane Publishing . Dstr. Intrada Music Group, Box 1240, Anderson, IN 46015. 1993.
- Haasemann, Frauke and Jordan, James. *Group Vocal Technique*. Video and workbook. Hinshaw: Chapel Hill, NC. 1991.
- Howerton, George. *Technique and Style in Choral Singing*. Carl Fischer, Inc.: New York, NY. MCMLVII.
- Klein, Joseph J. and Schjeide, Ole A. Singing Technique. How To Avoid Vocal Trouble. National Music Publishers: Tustin, CA. 1981.
- McKinney, James C. The Diagnosis and Correction of Vocal Faults. Broadman Press: Nashville, TN. 1982.
 - *Five Practical Lessons in Singing.* Convention Press: Nashville, TN. 1982.
- Nesheim, Paul with Weston Noble. *Building Beautiful Voices*. Roger Dean Publishing Company: Dayton, OH. 1995.
- **Pfautsch, Lloyd.** *Choral Therapy: Techniques and Exercises for the Church Choir.* Abingdon Press: Nashville, TN. 1994.
- **Phillips, Kenneth H.** *Directing the Choral Music Program*. Oxford University Press: USA. 2003.
- **Rosewell, Richard B.** *Handbook of Singing*. Dickerson Press: Evanston, IL. 1984.
- Wall, Joan and Caldwell, Robert. *The Singer's Voice*. Part I-Breath; Part II-Vocal Folds. 2 Videos. Pst...Inc.: P.O. Box 800208, Dallas, TX 75380.
- Wall, Joan and Weatherspoon, Ricky (R. Kent Weatherspoon). Anyone Can Sing. Doubleday & Company, Inc.: Garden City, NY. 1978.

Choral Methods: Diction & Vocal Care

- **Diction Domain.** www.dictiondomain.org. This is a great website for diction with links to language specific sites and many have listening examples.
- Eric Armstrong's Voice and Speech Source. http://www.yorku.ca/earmstro/ index.html.
- Lions Voice Clinic of the University of Minnesota.
- www.lionsvoiceclinic.umn.edu. Information about anatomy of singing.
- **Voice Care Network.** www.voicecarenetwork.org. A site for VoiceCare courses, also has a lot of information and articles on singing. John Cooksey, a founder of the VoiceCare Network program published research on the young singer.

CHURCH MUSIC - HISTORY & PRACTICE

- **Berry, Mary.** Cantors, A Collection of Gregorian Chant. Selected and edited by Mary Berry (Newnham College, Cambridge) with new English words for singing by Rose Mary McCabe. Cambridge University Press: Cambridge, U.K. 1979.
- Blackwell, Albert L. The Sacred in Music. Louisville: Westminster/John Knox Press, 1999.
- Blume, Fredrich, ed. Protestant Church Music: A History. W. W. Norton: New York, NY. 1975.
- Bohlman, Philip V., Blumhofer, Edith L., Chow, Maria, Editors. *Music in American Religious Experience*. Oxford University Press, Inc.: New York, NY. 2006.
- Clark, Linda J. Music in Churches: Nourishing Your Congregation;s Musical Life. The Alban Institute, Inc.: Bethesda, MD. 1994.
- Cobb, Buell E. *The Sacred Harp: A Traditions and Its Music*. The University of Georgia Press: Athens, GA. 1978.
- Davidson, Archibald. Church Music: Illusion and Reality. Harvard University Press.
- _____. Protestant Church Music in America. Schirmer: Boston, MA. 1933.
- **Davies, J. G.**, editor. *The New Westminster Dictionary of Worship and Liturgy*. Westminster Press: Philadelphia, PA. 1986.
- **Doran, Carol and Thomas H. Troeger.** *Trouble at the Table: Gathering the Tribes for Worship.* Nashville: Abingdon Press, 1992. ISBN 0-687-42656-1
- **Douglas, Winfred.** *Church Music in History & Practice*. Revised with additional material by Leonard Ellinwood. Charles Scribner's Sons: New York, NY. 1962.
- Ellinwood, Leonard. *The History of American Church Music*. Da Capo Press: NY. 1953. Reprint. 1970.
- Halter, Carl, and Schalk, Carl. A Handbook of Church Music. Concordia Publishing House: St. Louis. 1978.
- Hustad, Donald. Jubilate II: Church Music in Worship and Renewal. Carol Stream, IL: Hope Publishing Co., 1993

- Jackson, George Pullen. White Spirituals in the Southern Uplands: The Story of th Fasola Folk, Their Songs, Singings and "Buckwheat Notes". Dover Publicationss, Inc.: New York, NY. 1965. First published by the University of North Carolina Press: Chapel Hill, NC. 1933.
- Joncas, Jan Michael. From Sacred Song to Ritual Music: Twentieth-Century Understandings of Roman Catholic Worship Music. Collegeville, MN: Liturgical Press, 1997.
- Liemohn, Edwin. Organ and Choir in Protestant Worship. Fortress Press: Philadelphia, PA. 1968.
- Lovelace, Austin C. and William C. Rice. *Music and Worship in the Church,* revised ed. Nashville: Abingdon Press, 1976.
- Millar, Patrick. *The Story of the Church's Song*. Second edition. John Knox Press. 1927. Revised. 1962.
- **Orr, N. Lee.** *The Church Music Handbook for Pastors and Musicians.* Nashville: Abingdon Press, 1991.
- Osborn, Linda. *Good Liturgy, Small Parishes*. Chicago: Liturgy Training Publications, 1800 N. Hermitage Ave., Chicago, IL 60622-1101 or call 1-800-933-1800.
- Pelikan, Jaroslav. Bach among the Theologians. Augsburg Fortress: Minneapolis. 1986.
 - *Bach Among the Theologians*. Fortress Press: Philadelphia, PA. 1986. Second printing, 1987.
- **Power, David, Collins, Mary and Burnim, Mellonee.** Music And The Experience of God. Concilium1989 Religion in the Eighties. Stichting Concilium and T & T Clark LTD.: Edinburgh, Scotland. 1989. Available through Cokesbury Book Store.
- **Routley, Erik.** A Short History of English Church Music. With Additional Material by Lionel Dakers. Hope Publishing Company: Carol Stream, IL. 1997.
- Rice, William C. A Concise History of Church Music. Abingdon Press: Nashville. 1964.
- Routley, Erik. A Short History of English Church Music. Mowbrays: London & Oxford.

. *Church Music and the Christian Faith*. Agape: Carol Stream, IL. 1978.

- . *Twentieth Century Church Music*. Agape: Carol Stream, IL. 1964. Reprint. 1984.
- . Words, Music and the Church. Abingdon Press: Nashville, TN. 1968.
- Schalk, Carl, ed. Key Words in Church Music. Concordia: St. Louis, MO. 1978.
- Schwendowius, Barbara and Domling, Wolfgang, Editors. Johann Sebastian Bach: Life, Times, Influence. Polydor International GmbH: Hamburg, Germany. 1977. (Barenreiter Kassel)
- Stapert, Calvin R. A New Song for an Old World: Musical Thought in the Early Church. Wm. B. Eerdmans Publishing Co.: Grand Rapids, MI. 2007.
- Stevenson, Robert. Patterns of Protestant Church Music. Duke University Press. 1953.
- Stevenson, Robert. Protestant Church Music in America: A Short Survey of Men and Movements from 1564 to the Present. Norton Pub.: New York, NY. 1966.
- Weinandt, Elwyn A. Choral Music of the Church. The Free Press: New York, NY. 1965.
 - _____. Opinions on Church Music: Comments and Reports from Four and a Half Centuries. Baylor University Press: Waco, TX. 1971.
- Westermeyer, Paul. Te Deum: The Church and Music. Minneapolis: Fortress Press, 1998.
- Westermeyer, Paul. The Heart of the Matter: Church Music as Praise, Prayer, Proclamation, Story, and Gift. Chicago: GIA. ISBN: 1579991513.
- Wilson-Dickson, Andrew. The Story of Christian Music: From Gregorian Chant to Black Gospel - An Illustrated Guide to All the Major Traditions of Music in Worship. Minneapolis: Fortress Press, 1996..
- Young, Percy M. The Choral Tradition: An historical and analytical survey from the sixteenth century to the present day. W. W. Norton & Company, Inc.: New York, NY. 1971. Coypright 1962. PMY.

CONGREGATIONAL SINGING

- Bell, John L. *The Singing Thing: A Case for Congregational Song.* Chicago: G.I.A. Press, 2000. G-5510
- **Bell, John L.** *The Singing Thing, Too. Enabling Congregations to Sing.* Wild Goose Publications: Glasgow, Scotland. 2007.
- **Cherwien, David.** *Let the People Sing!* A Keyboardist's Creative and Practical Guide to Engaging God's People in Meaningful Song. Minneapolis: Augsburg Fortress, 1997.
- Farlee, Robert Buckley and Eric Vollen, editors. *Leading the Church's Song.* Minneapolis: Augsburg Fortress, 1998.
- Funk, Virgil. Editor. *The Singing Assembly. Pastoral Music In Practice -*6. The Pastoral Press: Washington, DC. 1991.
- Hawn, C. Michael. *Gather Into One: Praying and Singing Globally*. Grand Rapids, MI: William B. Eerdmans Publishing Co., 2003.
- Keiser, Marilyn J. Hymnal Studies Three: Teaching Music in the Small Church. Church Hymnal Corporation Also available from Augsburg Pub: Minneapolis, MN. 1983.
- Keithahn, Mary Nelson, ed. *Our Heritage of Hymns*, Vols. 1 and 2. Chorister's Guild: Garland, TX. Distributed by Lorenz Corporation, Dayton. 1986, 1989.
- *Office of Theology and Worship.* "Celebrating the Iona Community." Reformed Liturgy and Music. Volume 34, No. 2, Louisville: Presbyterian Church (USA), 2000.
- Parker, Alice. Creative Hymn Singing. Hinshaw: Chapel Hill, NJ. 1976.
 - . *Melodious Accord: Good Singing in Church*. Liturgy Translation Pub. 1991.
- Schalk, Carl. Praising God in Song: An Introduction to Christian Hymnody for Congregational Study. CPH (Concordia Publishing House): St. Louis, MO. 1993.
- Smith, William S. Joyful Noise: A Guide to Music in the Church for Pastors and Musicians. Providence House Publishers: Franklin, TN. 2007.
- Sydnor, James R. *The Hymn and Congregational Singing*. John Knox Press: Atlanta, GA. 1960.

. Hymns and Their Uses. Agape: Carol Stream, IL. 1982.

. Hymns: A Congregational Study. Agape: Carol Stream, IL. 1983.

_____. Introducing a New Hymnal: How to Improve Congregational Singing. GIA Publications, Inc.: Chicago, IL 60638. 1989.

Wren, Brian. *Praising a Mystery (Introduction)*. Hope Publishing Co.: Carol Stream, IL. 1986.

COPYRIGHT

- Althouse, Jay. Copyright: The Complete Guide for Music Educators. Alfred Publishing Co., Inc.: Van Nuys, California. 1997.
- Frank, Beatrice. "Guidelines for the Use of Copyrighted Materials." American Music Teacher (June-July 1981): 38.
- Monath, Rob. By the Book: A Simple Copyright Compliance Method for Musicians and Music Professionals. Hinshaw Music, Inc.: Chapel Hill, North Carolina. 2006.
- *"The New Copyright Law and Education."* Education Research Service, Inc., 1800 North Kent Street, Arlington, VA 22209.
- *"U.S. Copyright Law: A Guide for Church Musicians."* Church Music Publishers Association. Available from AGO Headquarters, 475 Riverside Drive, Suite 1260, NY 10115.
- Presbyterian Association of Musicians's website: www.pam.pcusa.org/ ProfCopyright.htm

[For a list of publishers, see listing under SOURCES in this booklet.]

DEVOTIONAL/INSPIRATIONAL MATERIALS

Burroughs, Bob. What Think Ye? Essays for Twenty-first Century Leaders, Pastors, and Church Musicians. Resource Publications: Eugene, OR. 2012.

Goldsmith, Joan Oliver. How Can We Keep From Singing: Music and the Passionate Life. W.W. Norton: New York, NY. 2001.

Jordan, James. *The Musician's Soul.* GIA Publications: Chicago, IL. 1999.
The Musician's Soul. GIA Publications: Chicago, IL. 2002.
The Musician's Walk. GIA Publications: Chicago, IL. 2006.

Raabe, Nancy M. One Minute Devotions for the Church Musician. Morningstar Music Publishers: St. Louis, MO. 2012.

Roth, Nancy. *Praise My Soul: Meditating on Hymns*. Church Publishing Incorporated: New York, NY. 2001.

HANDBELLS

- *The AGEHR. Handbell Notation Difficulty Level System, Solo and Ensemble Notation. The AGEHR, Inc.: Dayton, OH. 1997.*
 - _____. Score Study Techniques: And Their Application to Rehearsing Handbell Choirs. The American Guild of English Handbell Ringers: Dayton, OH. 1997.
- "A Catalogue of Music for English Handbells." American Guild of English Handbell Ringers: Dayton, OH 45406.
- Allured, Donald E. Musical Excellence in Handbells. Broadman Press: Nashville, TN. 1982.
- **Butler, William.** *Musical Handbells: A Comprehensive History of the Bells and Their Founders.* Phillimore & Co Ltd, West Sussex UK, 2001. ISBN 1 86077 118 1
- **Folkening, John.** *Handbells in the Liturgical Service*. Church Music Pamphlet Series. Concordia: St. Louis, MO. 1984.
- Handbells in the Liturgy: A Practical Guide for the Use of Handbells in Liturgical Worship Traditions. St. Louis, MO: Concordia Publishing House, 1996.
- **Hopson, Hal.** *The Creative Use of Handbells in Worship.* Carol Stream, IL: Hope Publishing Company.

Ivey, Robert. Handbell Assignment Book. Agape: Carol Stream, IL.

- Keller, Michael R. Developing Conducting Skills: For Directors of Handbell Choirs. A.G.E.H.R., Inc., 1055 E. Centerville Station Road, Dayton, OH 45459-5503. 1992.
- Keller, Michael R. Rehearsal Planning, Techniques and Procedures: For Directors of Handbell Choirs. AGEHR: Dayton, OH. 1992.
- **Parry, Scott B.** *The Story of Handbells*. Whittemore Association: Boston, MA. 1957.
- **Proulx, Richard.** *Tintinnabulum: The Liturgical Use of Handbells.* G.I.A.: Chicago, IL. 1980.
- Schalk, Carl. Handbells in the Liturgical Service. Concordia: St. Louis, MO.

Thompson, Martha L. Bell, *Book and Ringer*. Harold Flammer: Delaware Water Gap, PA.

Wagner, Douglas. Ringers Reference Guide. Agape: Dayton, OH.

- Weck, David L. and Berry, Susan. *Bell Basics*. Instructional video for beginning handbell ringer and director.
- Weck, David L. and Anderson, Christine, producers. *Songs for the Solo Ringer*. Instructional video including information on solo handbell arrangements and piano accompaniments. Video Code #1297.

Handbells: Equipment

Malmark, Inc., Bell Crest Park, Plumsteadville, PA 18949; Phone: 800-426-3235 or 215-766-7200; Email: malmark@voicenet.com Schulmerich Carillons, Inc., PO Box 903, Carillon Hill, Sellersville, PA 18960; Phone: 800-77-BELLS, 215-257-2771; Website: www.schulmerichbells.com/

Whitechapel Bell Foundry Lts., 34 Whitechapel Rd., London E1, IDY, England. Website: www.whitechapelbellfoundry.co.uk/musical.htm

HYMNODY

Hymnody: Hymnology

- Bailey, Albert E. The Gospel in Hymns. Macmillan: New York, NY. 1978.
- Benson, Louis F. The Hymnody of the Christian Church. John Knox Press: Louisville, KY. 1927. Reprint. 1956.
- **Bradley, Ian.** The Book of Hymns, Chosen, Edited and Introduced by Ian Bradley. The Overlook Press: Woodstock, NY. 1989.
- Church, F. Forrester & Mulry, Terrence. *The Macmillan Book of Earliest Christian Hymns*. Macmillan Publishing Company: New York, NY. 1988.
- **Clark, Keith C.** *A Selective Bibliography for the Study of Hymns 1980.* The Hymns Society of America, Inc., Headquarters, PO Box 30854, Fort Worth, TX 76129.
- **Eskew, Harry and Hugh T. McElrath.** Sing with Understanding: An Introduction to Christian Hymnology. Second Edition. Nashville, TN: Church Street Press, 1995. ISBN: 0805498257.
- Foote, Henry W. *Three Centuries of American Hymnody*. Shoe String Press: Hamden, CT. 1940, 1961.
- Hunnicutt, Judy. *Index of Biblical Characters in Hymns*. Boston: Hymn Society in the United States and Canada.
- *The Hymn.* Reformed Liturgy and Worship 21, n3, Summer 1987. Office of Theology & Worship, 100 Witherspoon St., Louisville, KY 40202-1396.
- *The Hymn Society in the United States and Canada*. Website: www.bu.edu/ sth/hymn/
- Julian, John, ed. A Dictionary of Hymnology: Origin and History of Christian Hymns. Four volumes. Dover, 1957, Gordon, 1977.
- Lovelace, Austin C. *The Anatomy of Hymnody*. GIA Publications: 7404 S. Mason Avenue, Chicago, IL 60638. 1965.
- Lovelace, Austin. Hymn Notes for Church Bulletins. GIA Publication: Chicago, IL. 1987.
- **Oyer, Mary.** *Exploring the Mennonite Hymnal: Essays.* Mennonite Publishing House: Scottdale. 1980.
- Music, David W. Hymnology: A Collection of Source Readings. Scarecrow Press, Inc.: Lanham, MD. 1996.

Reynolds, William and Price, Milburn. *A Joyful Sound: Christian Hymnody.* 2nd ed. Holt, Rinehart and Winston: NY. 1978.

_____. *A Survey of Christian Hymnody*. Hope Pub: Carol Stream, IL. 1987.

Routley, Erik, Edited and Expanded by Peter W. Cutts. An English-Speaking Hymnal Guide. GIA Publications, Inc.: Chicago, IL. 2005.

Routley, Erik. A Panorama of Christian Hymnody. The Liturgical Press: Collegeville, MN. 1979.

. *Christian Hymns: An Introduction to Their Story*. (on tape) Prestige Publications, Inc. Princeton, NJ 08540. 1982.

. *Christian Hymns Observed: When In Our Music God is Glorified.* Prestige Publications. Inc.: Princeton, NJ. 1982.

_. The Music of Christian Hymns. G.I.A. Pub: Chicago, IL. 1981.

Sadie, Stanley, ed. *New Grove Dictionary of Music and Musicians*. Macmillan Publishers, Ltd.: London. 1986.

Schalk, Carl. *Praising God in Song.* Introduction to Christian hymnody for congregational study. Concordia: St. Louis, MO.

Schilling, S. Paul. *The Faith We Sing*. The Westminster Press: 925 Chestnut Street, Philadelphia, PA 19107. 1983.

Schulz-Widmar, Russell. "American Hymnody: A View of the Current Scene." The Hymn 33, n3 (July 1982): 134-58.

Sydnor, James R. *Hymns: A Congregational Study*. (Leader and student workbook editions) Agape: Carol Stream, IL 60187. 1983.

. Hymns and Their Uses. Agape: Carol Stream, IL 60187. 1982.

_____. Introducing a New Hymnal: How To Improve Congregational Singing. GIA: Chicago, IL. 1989.

Vajda, Jaroslav. Something to Sing About. 12 lesson study of Christian song. Relationship between what we sing and what we teach. Concordia: St. Louis, MO. 1992.

Wicker, Vernon, ed. The Hymnology Annual: An International Forum on the Hymn and Worship. Volume I-1991, Volume 2-1992, Volume 3-1993. Vande Vere Pub: 8744 College Ave., Berrien Spring, MI 49103.

Young, Carlton. Music of the Heart: John and Charles Wesley on Music and Musicians, An Anthology. Carol Stream, IL: Hope Publishing Co., 1995.

. *My Great Redeemer's Praise: An Introduction to Christian Hymns.* Akron, OH: OSL Publications, 1995.

- Young, Carlton R. Music of the Heart: John & Charles Wesley on Music and Musicians. An Anthology. Hope Publishing Company: Carol Stream, IL. 1995.
- Young, Carlton, Robin Leaver, and James Litton, eds. *Duty and Delight: Routley Remembered.* Carol Stream, IL, 1985.

Hymnody: Hymnal Companions & Commentaries

- **Barkley, John, Editor.** *Handbook to the Church Hymnary.* Third Edition. Oxford University Press. Oxford: UK. 1979.
- **Bower, Peter C.,** Editor. *The Companion to the Book of Common Worship.* Office of Theology and Worship, PC (U.S.A.). Geneva Press: Louisville, KY. 2003.
- Christ-Janer, Albert, Hughes, Charles W., Smith, Carleton Sprague. American Hymns Old and New. Columbia University Press: New York, NY. 1980.
- Diehl, Katharine Smith. Hymns and Tunes-an Index. Scarecrow Press: Metuchen, NJ. 1979.
- **Dough, Whitney J.** *The Hymnwriters, Our Unknown Friends. A Biographical Guide to British and American Sacred Song.* Providence House Publishers: Franklin, TN., Second Ed. 1995.
- Ellinwood, Leonard, et al. *The Hymnal 1940 Companion*. Church Hymnal Corp.: New York, NY.
- **Forrell Marshall, Madeline.** *Common Hymnsense.* Chicago, IL: GIA, 1995. A critical analysis of 36 widely sung hymns. ISBN: 0941050696.
- Haeussler, Armin. *The Story of our Hymns: The Handbook to the Hymnal of the Evangelical and Reformed Church*. Eden Publishing House: St. Louis, MO.
- Hughes, Charles W. American Hymns Old and New. Notes on the Hymns and Biographies of the Authors and Composers. Columbia University Press: New York, NY. 1980.
- Kimbrough, Jr., S T. A Heart To Praise My God: Wesley Hymns for Today. Abingdon Press: Nashville, TN. 1996.

- Marshall, Madeleine Forell. Common Hymnsense. A critical analyze of 36 Widely sung hymns. GIA Publications, Inc.,: Chicago, IL. 1995.
- McKim, Lindajo H. Presbyterian Hymnal Companion. Westminster/John Knox Press: Louisville, KY. 1992.
- Muck, Judith L. The Presbyterian Hymnal: Complete Concordance and Indexes. Louisville, KY: Westminster/John Knox Press, 1997.
- **Reynolds, William J.** *Companion to Baptist Hymnal: 1975 edition.* Broadman Press: Nashville, TN. 1991.
- **Ronander, Albert C. and Ethel K. Porter.** *Guide to the Pilgrim Hymnal.* United Church Press: Philadelphia, PA. 1966.
- Routley, Erik. Companion to Westminster Praise. Hinshaw Music, Inc.: Chapel Hill, NC. 1977.
- Smith, William S., Th.D. Compiled by. *Hymnsearch: Indexes for The Presbyterian Hymnal*. Publisher unknown: Jackson, MI (Possible city of publication). 1995.
- **Stulken, Marilyn Kay.** *Hymnal Companion to the Lutheran Book of Worship.* Fortress Press: Philadelphia, PA. 1981.
- Stulken, Marilyn K. *With One Voice Reference Companion*. Minneapolis, MN: Augsburg Fortress, 2000. ISBN: 0806638435.
- Watson,, J. R. An Annotated Anthology of Hymns. Edited with commentary. Oxford University Press Inc.: New York, NY. 2002.
- Westermeyer, Paul. Let Justice Sing: Hymnody and Justice. Collegeville, MN: Liturgical Press, 1998. ISBN: 0814625053.
 - _____. Let The People Sing: Hymn Tunes In Perspective. GIA Publications, Inc.: Chicago, IL. 2005.
 - . With Tongues of Fire: Profiles in 20th-Century Hymn Writing. St. Louis, MO: Concordia Publishing House, 1995.

Wren, Brian. Praying Twice: The Music and Words of Congregational Song. Louisville, KY: Westminster/John Knox Press, 2000.

DENOMINATIONAL HYMNALS, COLLECTIONS, & SUPPLEMENTS

Baptist Church

The New National Baptist Hymnal.

Catholic Church

- 1986 Worship: A hymnal and service book for Roman Catholics. Robert J. Batastini, General Editor and Project Director. Chicago: G.I.A. Publications, 1986.
- *1987Lead Me, Guide Me: The African American Catholic Hymnal.* Chicago: G.I.A. Publications
- 1994 Gather Comprehensive. Robert J. Batastini and Michael A. Cymbala, General Editors, Chicago: G.I.A. Publications.
- 1994 Gather, second edition. Robert J. Batastini and Michael A. Cymbala, General Editors, Chicago: G.I.A. Publications.

Episcopal Church

- *1982 The Hymnal 1982.* Standing Commission on Church Music. New York: The Church Hymnal Corporation, 1982.
- *1993 Lift Every Voice and Sing II: An African American Hymnal.* New York: The Church Hymnal Corporation, 1993.
- 1997 Wonder, Love and Praise: A Supplement to The Hymnal 1982. New York: Church Publishing, Incorporated, 1997.

Iona Community

1994 Come All You People: Shorter Songs for Worship. John L. Bell & the Wild Goose Worship Group. Chicago: G.I.A. Publications, 1994. G-4391

1999 There Is One Among Us: Shorter Songs for Worship. John L. Bell & the Wild Goose Resource Group. Chicago: GIA Publications, 1999.

For a listing of all Iona publications available through GIA, see their website at www.giamusic.com/artists/Iona-Community.html

Lutheran: Evangelical Lutheran Church in America

1978 Lutheran Book of Worship, Minneapolis, Augsburg Publishing House.

- 1986 Songs of the People. Augsburg: Minneapolis, MN. 1986. 31 hymns prepared under auspices of the Division for Life and Mission in the Congregation of the American Lutheran Church and Division for Parish Services of Lutheran Church in America.
- 1995 With One Voice: A Lutheran Resource for Worship. Minneapolis: Augsburg Fortress, 1995.
- 1999 This Far By Faith: An African American Resource for Worship. Minneapolis: Augsburg Fortress.
- 2001 Hymns for Worship: Minneapolis: Augsburg Fortress, 2001. This CD-ROM contains many hymns from common ELCA worship resources in electronic format, including Lutheran Book of Worship, With One Voice, Worship & Praise, This Far by Faith, and Libro de Liturgia y C•ntico. These resources are suitable for inclusion in bulletins, service folders, and multimedia presentations such as projected worship
- 2003 Renewing Worship 5: New Hymns and Songs. Minneapolis: Augsburg Fortress, 2003.
- *Evangelical Lutheran Worship.* Evangelical Lutheran Church in America. Augsburg Fortress Publishers: Minneapolis. 2006.

Methodist Church

1981 Songs of Zion. A songbook from the black religious tradition, compiled to be made available to Methodist churches in America, containing spirituals, gospel hymns, songs for special occasions and service music. Nashville: Abingdon Press, 1981. Supplemental Worship Resources 12.

1989 The United Methodist Hymnal Book of United Methodist Worship. Nashville: Abingdon Press, 1989.

2000 The Faith We Sing. Nashville: Abingdon Press, 2000.

Moravian Church

1995 Moravian Book of Worship. Bethlehem and Winston-Salem: Moravian Church in America

Presbyterian Church (U.S.A.)

- 1955 The Hymnbook, Philadelphia: Westminster/John Knox Press, 1955.
- 1972 The Worshipbook. Joint Committee on Worship for Cumberland Presbyterian Church, Presbyterian Church in the United States, The United Presbyterian Church in the United States of America. Philadelphia: Westminster Press 1972.
- 1990 The Presbyterian Hymnal: Hymns, Psalms, and Spiritual Songs. Office of Worship. Louisville: Westminster/John Knox Press, 1990.
- 2001 El Himnario Presbiteriano. Raquel Gutierrez-Achon, editor. Spanish resources, with Service for the Lord's Day, nearly 500 hymns. Presbyterian Church (U.S.A.) Louisville: Westminster/John Knox Press, 2001.

2001 Hymns We Love to Sing. Louisville: Geneva Press, PC(USA), 2001.

- 2002 Come, Let Us Worship. Comprehensive hymnal for the Korean Church. Bilingual, containing 345 hymns and songs with services. Presbyterian Church (U.S.A.) Louisville: Westminster/John Knox Press, 2002.
- 2002 Holy Is the Lord: Music for the Lord's Day Worship. Louisville: Geneva Press, 2002.
- 2013 Glory to God: The Presbyterian Hymnal. Louisville: Westminster/John Knox Press, 2013.

Reformed Church in America

1985 Rejoice in the Lord: A Hymn Companion to the Scriptures. Erik Routley, editor. Grand Rapids: W. B. Eerdmans Publishing Company, 1985.

1994 Songs for Life. A hymnal for children of all ages. Grand Rapids: CRC Publications. Reformed Church in America, 1994.

2001 Sing! A New Creation! Grand Rapids, MI: CRC Publications, 2001.

Taize Community

1991 Songs and Prayers from Taizé. Taizé Community. Published in the USA by G.I.A. Publications, 1991. G-3719.

1998 Taizé: Songs for Prayer. Taizé Community. Published in the USA by G.I.A. Publications, 1991. G-4956.

For a listing of all music from the Taizé Community available through G.I.A., see their website at www.giamusic.com/taize/

United Church of Christ

1995 The New Century Hymnal. Cleveland: The Pilgrim Press, 1995.

NON-DENOMINATIONAL HYMNALS & COLLECTIONS

- *1968 New Songs for the Church.* Book 1 Psalms, children's songs, ballads, hymns; Book 2 canticles. Erik Routley, editor. Norfolk, England: Galliard/ Scottish Church Council 1968.
- 1976 Westminster Praise. Erik Routley, editor. Chapel Hill: Hinshaw Music, 1976. Hinshaw Music, Inc. Post Office Box 470, Chapel Hill, NC 27514. (919) 933-1691
- *1977 Ecumenical Praise*. Carlton R. Young, Executive Editor. Carol Stream, IL: Agape, 1977.
- *1979 Praise God in Song: Ecumenical Daily Prayer*. John Allyn Melloh and William G. Storey, compilers. Chicago, G.I.A. Publications, 1979. G-2270, Organ Supplement G-2270A
- *1980 Cry Hosanna*. Betty Pulkingham and Mimi Farra, editors. Carol Stream: Hope Publishing Company.
- 1981 ICEL Lectionary Music: Psalms and Alleluias and Gospel Acclamations for the Liturgy of the Word. International Commission on English in the Liturgy. Chicago: G.I.A. Publications. G-2626.
- 1987 Hymnal Supplement II. Carlton Young, executive editor. Carol Stream, Agape, 1987.
- *Hymn Sampler Eighty-Nine*. 32 hymns from British and North American composers. Brief biographical data on each writer. Available from Hymn Society in the United States and Canada. Boston, MA.
- *1991 Hymnal Supplement 1991.* 140 hymns, psalms and liturgical settings. Includes Pratt Green, Haas, Haugen, Hillert, Hurd, Joncas, Proulx, Schalk, Dudley-Smith, Vajda, Wren and others. Commissioned by Pacific Lutheran University. Available from G.I.A. G-3628.
- 1999 Halle, Halle: We Sing the World Round: Songs from the World Church for Children, Youth and Congregations. C. Michael Hawn, compiler and writer. Garland, TX: Choristers Guild, 1999.
- 2001 African American Heritage Hymnal. Chicago: G.I.A. Publications, 2001. G5400
- 2001 Hymns for the Gospels. A collection of suitable hymns for each Sunday of the three-year Lectionary, based on the gospel reading. Robert J. Batastini

and W. Thomas Smith, editors. Chicago: G.I.A. Publications: 2001. HYMNARIES & COLLECTIONS - INDIVIDUAL AUTHORS/COMPOSERS

- **Bozzuti-Jones, Mark.** *Sing the Faith: Spirituals.* Augsburg Fortress Publishers: Minneapolis, MN. 2002.
- Bringle, Mary Louise. Joy and Wonder, Love and Longing: 75 Hymn Texts. Chicago, IL: G.I.A. Publishing, 2003. G-5884
- Buenting, Ruth. *Sing the Faith: Carols of Christmas.* Augsburg Fortress Publishers: Minneapolis, MN. 2002.
- Cherwien, Susan. *Sing the Faith: The Presence of God.* Augsburg Fortress Publishers: Minneapolis, MN. 2002.

Clarkson, Margaret. A Singing Heart. Carol Stream, IL: Hope Publishing Co., 1987.

Daw, Carl P., Jr. *A Year of Grace: Hymns for the Church Year.* Carol Stream, IL: Hope Publishing Co.,1990.

. New Psalms and Hymns and Spiritual Songs. Carol Stream, IL: Hope Publishing Co.,1996

. *To Sing God's Praise: 18 Metrical Canticles*. Carol Stream, IL: Hope Publishing Co.,1992.

Doran, Carol and Thomas Troeger. New Hymns for the Lectionary to Glorify the Maker's Name. New York, NY: Oxford University Press, 1986. . New Hymns for the Life of the Church: To Make our Prayer and Music One. New York, NY: Oxford University Press, 1992.

Duck, Ruth. *Dancing in the Universe: Hymns and Songs.* Chicago, IL: G.I.A. Publications, 1990.

Dudley-Smith, Timothy. *Lift Every Heart: Collected Hymns 1961-1983 and some early Poems.* Carol Stream, IL : Hope Publishing Co., 1984.

_____. Great is the Glory: 36 New Hymns written between 1993 & 1996. Carol Stream, IL: Hope Publishing Co., 1997.

_____. Songs of Deliverance: 36 New Hymns written between 1984 & 1987. Carol Stream, IL: Hope Publishing Co., 1988.

Dunstan, Sylvia G. In Search of Hope and Grace. Chicago, IL: G.I.A. Publications, 1991.

. Where the Promise Shines: 17 New Hymns. Chicago, IL: G.I.A.

Publications, 1995. G-4098

- Gaunt, Alan. *Always from Joy: Hymn Texts 1991-1996*. London, Stainer & Bell. Available in the U.S. from Hope Publishing Co., Carol Stream, IL., 1997.
- Gillette, Carolyn Winfrey. *Gifts of Love: New Hymns for Today's Worship*. Louisville, KY: Geneva Press, 2000.

Green, Fred Pratt. *The Hymns and Ballads of Fred Pratt Green*. Carol Stream, IL: Hope Publishing Co., 19891982.

Later Hymns and Ballads and Fifty Poems. Carol Stream, IL: Hope Publishing Co., 1989.

Grindal, Gracia. Sing the Faith: Hymns of Grace. Augsburg Fortress Publishers: Minneapolis, MN. 2002.

. We Are One in Christ: Hymns, Paraphrases, and Translations by Gracia Grindal. Kingston, NY: Selah Publishing Co., 1996.

Horman, John D. and Mary Nelson Keithan. *Time Now to Gather: New Hymns for the Church Family*. Nashville, TN: Abingdon Press, 1998.

Huber, Jan Parker. Joy in Singing. The Joint Office of Worship. Philadelphia, PA: Westminster Press, 1983.

. A Singing Faith. Philadelphia, PA: Westminster Press, 1987.

. Singing in Celebration: Hymns for Special Occasions. Louisville, KY: Westminster/John Knox Press, 1996.

Hurd, David. The David Hurd Hymnary: Twelve New Hymntunes with various texts. Chicago: G.I.A. Publications, 1985. G-2883.

Kaan, Fred. *The Hymn Texts of Fred Kaan*. Carol Stream, IL: Hope Publishing Co., 1985.

_____. *Planting trees and sowing seeds: New hymns by Fred Kaan.* Oxford University Press and Hope Publishing Company, 1989.

Keithan, Mary Nelson and John D. Horman. *Time Now to Gather: New Hymns for the Church Family*. Nashville, TN: Abingdon Press, 1998.

Morris, Sally Ann. Giving Thanks with Song and Prayer: The Hymntunes of Sally Ann Morris. Chicago, IL: G.I.A., 1998. G-4930

Murray, Shirley Erena. Every Day in Your Spirit: Shirley Erena Murray New Hymns Written Between 1992 and 1996. Carol Stream, IL: Hope Publishing Company, 1996.

___. In Every Corner sing: The Hymns of Shirley Erena Murray.

Carol Stream, IL: Hope Publishing Company, 1992.

- Music from Taize, Vols. I and II, Berthier, GIA Publications, Inc., 7404 S. Mason Avenue, Chicago, IL 60638.
- **Patterson, Joy F.** Come, You People of the Promise: The Collected Hymns of Joy F. Patterson. Carol Stream, IL: Hope Publishing Company, 1994.
- Pavlechko, Thomas. Radiant City: The Collected Hymns, Carols, and song of Thomas Pavlechko. Kingston, NY: Selah Publishing Co., 2002.
- Peacock, David and Weaver, Geoff. Editors. World Praise: Combined Music Edition. Jubilate Hymns. Marshall Pickering. London: U.K. 1995. (Part of HarperCollins Publishers).
- Quinn, James, SJ. Praise for All Seasons. Kingston, NY: Selah Publishing Co., 1994.

Routley, Erik. Eternal Light. New York, NY: Carl Fischer, Inc., 1971.

- Rowan, William. *Together Met, Together Bound*. Hymn Settings by William Rowan. Selah Publishing Company, 1993.
- Schalk, Carl. The Carl Schalk Hymnary: Forty-Seven New Hymntunes and Carols with various texts. Chicago, IL: G.I.A. Publications, 1989. G-3269 . The Carl Schalk Hymnary Supplement: Sixteen New Hymntunes and Carols with Various Texts. Chicago, IL: G.I.A. Publications, 1991. G-3708

. Our Voices Raise: Twenty New Hymn Tunes for Congregation, Choir, and Accompaniment. Chicago, IL: G.I.A. Publications, 1991. G-5970

. *Thine the Praise: The Hymntunes and Carols of Carl Schalk.* Including Sixteen New Hymntunes with Various Texts. Chicago, IL: G.I.A. Publications, 1991. G-4554

- Scott, K. Lee. *Rejoice in God: the K. Lee Scott Hymnary.* St. Louis, MO: MorningStar Music Publishers, 2000.
- Sensmeier, Randall. Teach Our Hearts to Sing Your Praise: hymn tunes, songs and carols. Chicago, IL: G.I.A. Publishing, 2001. G-5632
- Sing the Faith Series. Adult Bible Study: Music. Augsburg Fortress Publishers: Minneapolis, MN. 2002. Each volume explores music, poetry, and stories associated with five hymns of Christian faith. Participants reflect on their personal history with each hymn through the study of Biblical texts and themes.

Stuempfle, Herman G., Jr. Awake Our Hearts to Praise: Hymns, Songs and

Carols. Chicago, IL: G.I.A. Publications, 2000.

_____. *Redeeming the Time: A Cycle of Song for the Christian Year.* Chicago, IL: G.I.A. Publications, 1997.

Stulken, Marilyn. Sing the Faith: Hymns of Comfort. Augsburg Fortress Publishers: Minneapolis, MN. 2002.

Troeger, Thomas H. *Above the Moon Earth Rises: Hymn texts, anthems, and poems for a new creation.* New York, NY: Oxford University Press, 2002.

. Borrowed Light: Hymn texts, prayers and poems. New York, NY: Oxford University Press, 1994.

Troeger, Thomas H. and Carol Doran. New Hymns for the Lectionary to Glorify the Maker's Name. New York, NY: Oxford University Press, 1986.

Carol. New Hymns for the Life of the Church: To Make our Prayer and Music One.. New York, NY: Oxford University Press, 1992..

Tryggestad, David. *Sing the Faith: Hymns on Prayer.* Augsburg Fortress Publishers: Minneapolis, MN. 2002.

Vajda, Jaroslav J. Now the Joyful Celebration: Hymns, Carols and Songs. St. Louis, MO: Morningstar Music Publishers, 1987.

. So Much to Sing About: Hymns, Carols and Songs. A Supplement to Now the Joyful Celebration. St. Louis, MO: MorningStar Music Publishers, 1991.

White, David Ashley. *Sing My Soul: The Hymns of David Ashley White.* Kingston, NY: Selah Publishing Co., 2002. 1996.

. Songs for a New Creation.: New Hymns of David Ashley White. Kingston, NY: Selah Publishing Co., 2002.

Whitney, Rae E. With Joy Our Spirits Sing: The Hymns of Rae E. Whitney. Kingston, NY: Selah Publishing co., 1995.

Williamson, Malcolm. 16 Hymns and Processionals. Carol Stream, IL: Agape, 1975.

Wren, Brian. Bring Many Names: 35 New Hymns by Brian Wren. Carol Stream, IL: Hope Publishing Company, 1989.

. Faith Looking Forward: The Hymns and Songs of Brian Wren with many Tunes by Peter Cutts. Carol Stream, IL: Hope Publishing Company, 1983.

INSTRUMENTAL MUSIC IN WORSHIP

Hopson, Hal H. The Creative Use of Instruments in Worship. Hope Publishing Company: Carol Stream, IL. 2000.

Ode, James. Brass Instruments In Church Services. Augsburg Publishing House: Minneapolis, MN. 1970.

LECTIONARY / PLANNING GUIDES

- Allen, Horace T. A Handbook for the Lectionary. Geneva Press: Philadelphia, PA.
- **Augsburg Fortress.** *Sundays and Seasons.* Minneapolis, MN: Augsburg Fortress, 2003. Comprehensive worship planning guide based on the Revised Common Lectionary and the church year.
- **Book of Common Worship.** Prepared by Theology and Worship Ministry Unit for Presbyterian Church U.S.A. and Cumberland Presbyterian Church. Westminster: Louisville, KY. 1993.
- **Bob, Barry and Hans Boehringer.** *Proclaim-A Guide for Planning Liturgy and Music.* Series A, B, and C: Part 1, 2, 3, 4. Concordia: St. Louis, MO. 2nd edition, 1994.
- Bone, David L. And Mary J. Scifres. *Prepare! A Weekly worship Planbook* for Pastors and Musicians. Nashville, TN: Abingdon Press, 2003.
- Bower, Peter, ed. Handbook for the Common Lectionary. Geneva Press: Philadelphia, PA. 1987.
- Call to Worship: Liturgy, Music, Preaching & the Arts: Lectionary Aids for Year A, B, C. The official journal of the Presbyterian Association of Musicians. Published by the Office of Theology and Worship, Presbyterian Church (USA) in association with the Geneva Press. Volume one of each year contains aids for planning worship including the Revised Common Lectionary, suggestions for the liturgy; hymns, Psalms, anthems, vocal solo music, and aids to planning worship.

- **Daw, Carl P., Jr. and Pavlechko, Thomas.** *Liturgical Music for the Revised Common Lectionary. Year A.* Church Publishing, Inc.: New York, NY. 2007.
 - *Liturgical Music for the Revised Common Lectionary. Year B.* Church Publishing, Inc.: New York, NY. 2008.
 - *Liturgical Music for the Revised Common Lectionary. Year C. Church Publishing, Inc.: New York, NY. 2009.*
- Edson, Jean Slater. Organ Preludes: An Index to Compositions on Hymn Tunes, Chorales, Plainsong Melodies, Gregorian Tunes and Carols. 2 vols. Scarecrow Press: Metuchen, NJ. 1970.
- Ellingboe, Bradley, editor. *Choral Literature for Sundays and Seasons.* Augsburg Fortress: Minneapolis, MN. 2004.
- Espina, Noni. Vocal Solos for Christian Churches. Metuchen, NJ: The Scarecrow Press, Inc. 1984. (Third Edition)
- Ferguson, John. Worship Blueprints: Guide to Planning Worship Music. Augsburg: Minneapolis, MN. 1983.
- **Ferguson, John.** *Chorale Preludes: Alpha to Omega.* Cassette discussing the purpose of the chorale prelude and its use in the service. Available through AGO Headquarters, 475 Riverside Drive, Suite 1260, New York, NY 10115.
- Hamill, Paul, comp. Church Music Handbook. The Pilgrim Press: New York, NY.
- Hoffman, Walter C. Worship Blueprints: Guide to Planning Congregational Worship. Augsburg: Minneapolis, MN.
- Hollies, H. Linda. *Trumpet in Zion, Worship Resources*, Year (A). Cleveland, OH: Pilgrim Press, 2001.
 - *Trumpet in Zion*, Worship Resources, Year (B). Cleveland, OH: Pilgrim Press, 2001.
- *Trumpet in Zion,* Worship Resources, Year (C). Cleveland, OH: Pilgrim Press, 2001.
- Hunnicutt, Judy. Index of Hymn Tune Accompaniments for Organ. Available from the Hymn Society in the United States and Canada.
- Hunter, William C. Music in Your Church. Judson Press: Valley Forge, PA.

LabOra Worship. Duplo Data, AS. (No longer available)

- Laster, James. Catalogue of Choral Music Arranged in Biblical Order. Lanham, MD: The Scarecrow Press, Inc. 1996 Second Edition. 2002 Supplement.
- Laster, James. Catalogue of Vocal Solos and Duets Arranged in Biblical Order. Metuchen, NJ: The Scarecrow Press, Inc. 1984..
- Lawrence, Joy E. and John A. Ferguson. A Musician's Guide to Church Music. The Pilgrim Press: New York, NY. 1981.
- Lawrence, Joy. *The Organist's Shortcut to Service Music*. Volume 1, supplement 1, volume 2. Ludwig Music Pub: Cleveland, OH. 1986.
- McIntyre, Dean B., PhD. Hymns for the Revised Common Lectionary 2007. Discipleship Resources: Nashville, TN. 2006.
- McLean, Terri Bocklund and Rob Glover. Choosing Contemporary Music: Season, Topical, Lectionary Indexes. Minneapolis, MN: Augsburg Fortress, 2000.
- Ramshaw, Gail. Between Sundays: Daily Bible Readings Based on the Revised Common Lectionary. Augsburg Fortress: Minneapolis, MN. 1997.
- Planning Ideas for the Seasons of the Year. Series A; Series B; Series C. Worship Blueprints. Augsburg: Minneapolis, MN.
- Schattauer, Thomas. "The Church Year." Edited by Paul Westermeyer. The Parish Education Series five topics included. MorningStar: St. Louis, MO.
- Smith, William S., compiler. *Hymnsearch: Indexes for The Presbyterian Hymnal*. William S. Smith, 1826 Ridgeover Place, Jackson, MS 39211, 1995.
- Stulken, Marilyn Kay and Seltz, Martin A., Compilers. Indexes for Worship Planning. Revised Common Lectionary, Lutheran Book of Worship: With One Voice. Augsburg Fortress: Minneapolis, MN. 1996.
- Supplemental Liturgical Resources Nos. 1-7. Westminster Press: Philadelphia, PA.
- *Vanderbilt Divinity Library Online Resource*. For a complete listing of the Revised Common Lectionary with full texts, see http://divinity.library.vanderbilt.edu/lectionary/
- Wenk, Arthur. Musical Resources for the Revised Common Lectionary. Metuchen NJ: Scarecrow Press, 1994.
- Werning, Daniel. Selected Source Index for Hymn and Chorale Tunes in Lutheran Worship. Concordia: St. Louis, MO.

LITURGICAL ARTS

- **Blain, Susan,** editor. *Imaging the Word: An Arts and Lectionary Resource.* Cleveland: United Church Press, 1995, Volumes 1, 2, and 3 for Lectionary Years (A), (B), and (C)
- **Bryans, Nena.** *Full Circle: A Proposal to the Church for an Arts Ministry.* San Carlos, CA: Schuyler Institute for Worship and the Arts, 1988),
- *Office of Theology and Worship*. Liturgical Arts. Special Issue of Reformed Liturgy & Worship, Vol. 23, No. 3, Louisville, KY: Presbyterian Church (USA), 1989.
- Walton, Janet R. Art and Worship: A Vital Connection. Collegeville, MN: The Liturgical Press, 1991.

Liturgical Arts: Dance

- Adams, Doug, ed. *Dancing Christmas Carols*. The Sharing Company, 6226 Bernhard Ave., Richmond, CA 94805. 1978.
- Adams, Doug and Apostolos-Cappadona, Diane, eds. Dance as Religious Studies. New York, NY: Crossroad Publishers. 1990.
- Adams, Doug and Rock, Judith. Biblical Criteria in Modern Dance: Modern Dance as a Prophetic Form. The Sharing Company: Richmond, CA. 1979.
- Adams, Doug. Changing Biblical Imagery and Artistic Identity in 20th Century Liturgical Dance. The Sharing Company: Richmond, CA. 1980.

_____. Congregational Dancing in Christian Worship, revised edition. The Sharing Company: Richmond, CA. 1984.

_____. Involving People in Dancing Worship: Historic and Contemporary Patterns. The Sharing Company: Richmond, CA. 1975.

Davies, J. G. *Liturgical Dance: An Historical, Theological and Practical Handbook.* Trinity Press International: Philadelphia, PA. 1984.

DeSola, Carla. Introducing Dance in Christian Worship. The Sharing Company: 6226 Bernhard Ave., Richmond, CA 94805. 1978.

. *The Spirit Moves: A Handbook of Dance and Prayer*. Edited by Doug Adams. The Sharing Company: Richmond, CA. 1986.

- Fischer, Constance and Adams, Doug. *Dancing with Early Christians*. The Sharing Company: Richmond, CA. 1983.
- **Roberts, Debbie.** *Rejoice: A Biblical Study of the Dance.* Revival Press, Inc.: Bedford, TX. 1987.
- **Rock, Judith.** *Theology in the Shape of Dance: Dance Use in Worship and Theology.* The Sharing Company, 6226 Bernhard Ave., Richmond, CA 94805. 1978.
- **Taylor, Margaret Fisk.** *Hymns in Action for Everyone*. The Sharing Company: 6226 Bernhard Ave., Richmond, CA 94805. 1978.
- **Troxell, Kay,** ed. *Resources in Sacred Dance: Annotated Bibliography from Christian and Jewish Traditions.* Issued by Sacred Dance Guild: Peterborough, NH. 1991.

Liturgical Arts: Drama

- Buchanan, Aimee Wallis, Bill Buchanan and Jodi B. Martin. *Making Worship Real.* Louisville, KY: Geneva Press, 2001. Chatham, James O. Enacting the Word: Using Brama in Preaching. Louisville: Westminster/ John Knox Press, 2003
- Coleman, Edward D., and Sheffer, Isaiah, comp. *The Bible in English Drama*. The New York Public Library and KTAV Publishing House, Inc.: New York, NY. 1986.
- Ehrensperger, Harold. *Religious Drama: Ends and Means*. Greenwood Press Pub. 1962.
- **Johnson, Albert.** *Best Church Plays: A Bibliography of Religious Drama.* Pilgrim Press: Minneapolis, MN. 1968.
- Johnson, Bev. Drama in the Church. Augsburg Publishing House: Minneapolis, MN. 1983.
- L'Engle, Madelaine. *The Journey with Jonah*. Farrar, Straus and Giroux, An Ariel Book. 1967.

. *Walking on Water: Reflections on Faith and Art.* Bantam Books: New York, NY. 1982.

- Medkeff-Rose, Brian. *The Play's the Thing!: How to Begin a Drama Ministry*. Abingdon Press: Nashville, TN. 1986.
- Moynahan, Michael E. Once Upon a Parable: Dramas for Religious Education. Paulist Press: New York/Ramsey, NJ. 1984.
- Schnusenberg, Christine C. *The Relationship between the Church and the Theater*. University Press of America: Landham, MD. 1988.
- Urfer, Pamela. Church Drama Basics. Santa Cruz, CA: Creative Arts Productions. 1984.
- **Von Balthasar, Hans Urs.** *Theo-Drama: Theological Dramatic Theory. Vol. 1. Prolegomena.* San Francisco, CA: Ignatius Press. 1988 translation.

Liturgical Arts: Language

- Ramshaw, Gail. Words That Sing. Chicago, IL: Liturgy Training Publications, 1992.
- **Troeger, Thomas H.** Above the Moon Earth Rises: Hymn Texts, anthems, and poems for a new creation. New York, NY: Oxford University Press, 2002.
- **Troeger, Thomas H.** *Borrowed Light: Hymn texts, prayers, and poems.* New York, NY: Oxford University Press, 1994.
- Wren, Brian. *What Language Shall I Borrow?* God-Talk in Worship: A Male Response to Feminist Theology. New York, NY: Crossroad, 1989.

Liturgical Arts: Textile Art

- . Art of the Spirit: Contemporary Canadian Fabric Art. Dundvan Press, Ltd: Toronto. 1992
- Bryan, Nena. Full Circle: A Proposal to the Church for an Arts Ministry. San Carlos, Schuyler Institute for Worship and the Arts in California, 1988.
- **Collopy, George.** *It's a Banner Year!* San Jose, CA: Resource Publications, Inc. 1990.
- **DeBord, Jane and Linda Isbell.** *Banner Designs for Celebrating Christian.* Concordia Publishing House, St. Louis, MO. 1984.

Dillenberger, John. The Visual Arts and Christianity in America: From the Colonial period to the present. Revised edition. Crossroad: NY 1988.

Philippart, David, editor. *Clothed in Glory: Vesting the Church.* Chicago, IL: Liturgy Training Publications, 1997.

Liturgical Arts: Visual Art

- **Blain, Susan,** editor. *Imaging the Word: An Arts and Lectionary Resource.* Cleveland, OH: United Church Press, 1995, Volumes 1, 2, and 3 for Lectionary Years (A), (B), and (C)
- **Chinn, Nancy.** *Spaces for Spirit: Adorning the Church.* Chicago, IL: Liturgy Training Publications, 1998.
- **Dyrness, William A.** Visual Faith: Art Theology, and Worship in Dialogue. Grand Rapids, MI: Baker Academic, 2001.

MUSIC HISTORY & REFERENCE

- Apel, Willi. Harvard Dictionary of Music. Harvard University Press: Cambridge, MA. 1979.
- Gleason, Harold and Becker, Warren. Music Literature Outlines. Series I-Music in the Middle Ages and Renaissance. Series II-Music in the Baroque. Series III-Early American Music. Series IV-20th Century American Composers. Alfred Publishing Inc.: 16380 Roscoe Blvd., P.O. Box 10003, Van Nuys, CA 91410-0003. 1988.
- Grout, Donald Jay. A History of Western Music. Third edition. W. W. Norton: NY. 1980.
- Kennedy, Michael. The Concise Oxford Dictionary of Music. Oxford University Press: London. 1985.
- Sadie, Stanley, editor. *The New Grove Dictionary of Music and Musicians*. London: Macmillan Publishers, 1980.
- Salzman, Eric. Twentieth Century Music: An Introduction. Third edition. Prentice-Hall: Englewood Cliffs, NJ. 1988.

MUSIC MINISTRY

- Are, Thomas. Faithsong: A New Look at the Ministry of Music. Westminster Press: Louisville, KY. 1981.
- Bergland, Robert. A Philosophy of Church Music. Moody Press: Chicago, IL. 1985.
- Bradley, C. Randall. From Postlude to Prelude: Ministry's Other Six Days (Second edition). St. Louis, MO: MorningStar Music Publishers. 2015.
- Causey, C. Harry. *Things They Didn't Tell Me About Being a Minister of Music*. Music Revelation Press Available from Augsburg Pub. 1988.
- **Coblentz, John.** Music in Biblical Perspective. Christian Light Publications: Harrisonburg, VA. 1986.
- **DeVinney, Richard.** *There's More to Church Music than Meets the Ear.* Fortress Press: Philadelphia, PA. 1972.
- **Doran, Carol, and Thomas H. Troeger.** *Trouble at the Table: Gathering the Tribes for Worship.* Nashville, TN: Abingdon Press, 1992
- **Farlee, Robert Buckley.** *Musicians in the Assembly: A Worship Handbook.* Minneapolis, MN: Augsburg Fortress, 2001.
- Faulkner, Quentin. Wiser Than Despair: The Evolution of Ideas in the Relationship of Music and the Christian Church. Westport: Greenwood Press, 1996.
- Johansson, Calvin M. Music and Ministry: A Biblical Counterpoint. Hendrickson Publishers: Peabody, MA. 1983.
- Johnson, Lawrence J. *The Mystery of Faith: The Ministers of Music*. Pastoral Press: Washington, DC. 1983.
- Keiser, Marilyn J. Hymnal Studies Three: Teaching Music in the Small Church. Church Hymnal Corporation Also available from Augsburg Pub: Minneapolis, MN. 1983.
- Leaver, Robin. *The Theological Character of Music in Worship*. Available from Concordia: St. Louis, MO.
- Lovelace, Austin C. and Rice, William. *Music and Worship in the Church*. Abingdon Press: Nashville, TN. 1976.
- Mitchell, Robert H. *Ministry and Music*. Westminster Press: Philadelphia, PA. 1978.

Osbeck, Kenneth. *The Endless Song: Music and Worship in the Church.* Kregel: MI. 1987.

. The Ministry of Music. Kregel Pub: Grand Rapids, MI. 1975.

- **Owens, Bill.** Edited by Herb Miller. *The Magnetic Music Ministry: Ten Productive Goals. Effective Church Series.* Nashville, TN: Abingdon Press, 1996.
- Page, Sue Ellen. Hearts and Hands and Voices: Growing in Faith Through Choral Music. Tarzanna, CA: H. T. FitzSimons Co., 1995.
- Pass, David B. Music and the Church. Broadman Press: Nashville, TN. 1989.
- Power, D.,; Collins, M.,; and Burnim, M., eds. *Music and the Experience of God.* Vol. 202, Concilium Series. Books International, Inc: Herndon, VA. 1989.
- Routley, Erik and Young, Carlton. *Music Leadership in the Church*. Abingdon Press: Nashville, TN. 1967, 1985.
- Routley, Erik. Church Music and the Christian Faith. Agape Pub.: Carol Stream, IL. 1978.

. The Divine Formula. Prestige Pub: Princeton, NJ 08540. 1986.

- Schalk, Carl and Halter, Carl ed. *A Handbook of Church Music*. Discusses function of music in worship. Available from Concordia Publishers: St. Louis, MO.
- Schalk, Carl. "Church Music in the '90s." The Christian Century, March 21-28, 1990.
 - . More First Person Singular. St. Louis, MO: MorningStar Music Publishers. 2015.
 - . The Pastor and the Church Musician: Thoughts on Aspects of a Common Ministry. Church Music Pamphlet Series. Concordia: St. Louis, MO. 1984.
- **Sydnor, James.** *Music in the Life of the Church.* Covenant Life Curriculum: Richmond, VA.

Werner, Eric. The Sacred Bridge, Vol. II. Ktav Publishing: Hoboken, NJ. 1985.

Westermeyer, Paul. Church Musicians: Reflections on Their Call, Craft, History, and Challenges. St. Louis, MO: MorningStar Music Publishers, 2015.

. The Church Musician. Harper: San Francisco, CA. 1988.

 Wold, Wayne L. Tune My Heart to Sing: Devotions for Choirs Based on the Revised Common Lectionary. Minneapolis, MN: Augsburg Fortress, 1997.
Wohlgemuth, Paul W. Rethinking Church Music. Hope Publishing: Carol

Stream, IL. 1973. Revised, 1981.

Yarrington, John. Choir Crackups: The Church Musician's Book of Humor.

MUSIC THEORY

- Aldwell, E. and Schachter, C. *Harmony and Voice Leading*, Vols. 1 and 2. Harcourt, Brace, Jovanovich. 2nd ed. 1989.
- Gauldin, Robert. A Practical Approach to 16th-Century Counterpoint. Prentice-Hall. 1985.

Gauldin, Robert. A Practical Approach to 18th-Century Counterpoint. Prentice-Hall. 1988.

Harder, Paul. *Basic Material in Music Theory*. Allyn and Bacon: Rockleigh, NJ. 1990.

Keaney, Helen. Figured Bass for Beginners. E.C. Schirmer: Boston, MA. 1981.

Lang, C.S. Score Reading Exercises, Book I. Novello. 1932.

Morris, Reginald O. Figured Bass at the Keyboard. 2 volumes. Oxford Press.

Piston, Walter. Harmony. W. W. Norton & Co.

- Salzer & Schachter. Counterpoint in Composition The Study of Voice Leading. Columbia University Press. 1989.
- **Soderlund, Gustave.** *Direct Approach to Counterpoint in 16th Century Style.* Prentice-Hall. 1947.

Wilkinson, P. 100 Score Reading Exercises. Novello.

_____. *Alfred's Essential of Music Threory*. User's Guide. Alfred Publishing Co., Inc., 2000.

ORCHESTRATION

Kennan, Kent and Granthan, Donald. The Technique of Orchestration. Fourth edition. Prentice-Hall: Englewood Cliffs, NJ. 1990.

ORFF METHODS / SUPPLIERS

Honor and Sonor Musical Instruments, Andrews Rd., Hicksville, NY 11802
Studio 49, Magnamusic-Baton, 10370 Page Industrial Blvd., St. Louis, MO 63132

Suzuki Musical Instrument Corp., PO Box 261030, San Diego, CA 92126 Suzuki Musical Instrument Corp., PO Box 3681, Centerline, MI 48015

ORGAN

Organ: Literature & Repertory

Arnold, Corliss Richard. Organ Literature: A Comprehensive Survey. Volumes I and II. Metuchen, NJ: The Scarecrow Press, Inc., 1984.

"Catalogue." The Organ Literature Foundation, 45 Norfolk Rd., Braintree, MA.

- Ode, James. Brass Instruments in Church Services. Augsburg: Minneapolis, MN. 1970.
- *Repertoire for the Small Organ*. American Guild of Organists Pamphlet: New York, NY.
- **Spelman, Leslie.** Organ Plus: A Catalogue of Ensemble Music. 4th edition. Edited by Jayson Rod Engquist. Available through American Guild of Organists, New York, NY.

Organ: Method & Pedagogy

- *Basic Organ Techniques*. Video produced by LCMS Commission on Worship for the New Organist. Concordia, St. Louis, MO.
- **Cotter, Jeane.** *Keyboard Improvisation for the Liturgical Musician.* Chicago, IL: GIA Publications, Inc., 1993. ISBN: 9995450593.
- **Davis, Roger E.** *The Organists' Manual.* Technical Studies and Selected Compositions for the Organ. W. W. Norton & Company. 1985.
- **Engel, James.** *An Introduction to Organ Registration*. Augsburg: Minneapolis, MN.
- Fishell, Janette. But What Do I Do With My Feet? The Pianist's Guide to the Organ. Nashville, TN: Abingdon Press, 1996.
- **Gleason, Harold.** *A Method of Organ Playing.* 8th edition. Edited by Catherine Crozier Gleason. Prentice-Hall: Englewood Cliffs, NJ. 1995. ISBN: 0132075318
- Goode, Jack C. Pipe Organ Registration. Abingdon Press: Nashville, TN. 1964.

Hancock, Gerre. Improvising: How to Master the Art. New York, NY: Oxford University Press, 1994.

- Heller, David. Manual on Hymn Playing: A Handbook for Organists. GIA Publications.
- Hettinger, Sharon L. American Organ Music of the Twentieth Century: An Annotated Bibliography. Detroit Studies in Music, Bibliography No. 77. Warren, MI: Harmonie Park Press, 1997.
- Hurford, Peter. Making Music on the Organ, revised ed. Oxford University Press, 1990.
- Irwin, Stevens. Dictionary of Pipe Organ Stops. Schirmer: New York. Revised. 1965.
- Johnson, David N. Organ Teacher's Guide. Augsburg Publishing House: Minneapolis, MN.
- Klotz, Hans. *The Organ Handbook*. Translated by Gerhard Krapf. Concordia: St. Louis, MO. 1969. design, history, lit.
- Leupold, Wayne. First Organ Book. Boston: ECS Publishing, 1995.
- Lovelace, Austin C. *The Organist and Hymn Playing*. Abingdon Press: New York, NY. 1962.
- Manz, Paul. Service Playing and Interpretation. Cassette available through AGO Headquarters, 475 Riverside Drive, Suite 1260, New York, NY 10115.
- Manz, Paul. *Practicum on Service Playing and Improvisation, Part I and II.* Two cassettes available through AGO Headquarters.
- Mathis, William S. The Pianist and Church Music. Abingdon Press: New York, NY. 1962.
- **Overduin, Jan.** *Improvisation for Organists.* New York, NY: Oxford University Press, 1998.
- **Rockholt, Preston.** Creative Service Playing: An Advanced Improvisation Workbook. AGO Headquarters, 475 Riverside Drive, Suite 1260, New York, NY 10115.

Organ: Purchase

Associated Pipe Organ Builders of America. American Organ Building 1976. Available through American Guild of Organists, 475 Riverside Dr. Suite 1260, New York, NY 10115. _____. *Guide to Pipe Organ Planning and Fund Raising*. Available through AGO Headquarters.

. *Planning Space for Pipe Organs 1992*. Available through AGO Headquarters.

- Bedient, Gene. "So You Want a Pipe Organ for Your Church!" The American Organist September 1987.
- Berthards, Jack M. "How to Select an Organ Builder." The American Organist (March 1984): 62-65.
- *Buying an Organ for Less Than \$100,000.* Prepared by AGO, Pastoral Musicians, and Associated Pipe Organ Builders of America. Available from AGO Headquarters.
- Engen, David. "Designing the Small Organ." The American Organist (January 1979): 18.
- **Fesperman, John.** Organ Planning: Asking the Right Questions. Hymnal Studies #4. Church Hymnal Corporation: New York, NY. 1984.
- Gehring, Philip and Ingram, Donald. The Church Organ: A Guide to its Selection. Organ Literature Foundation, 1973.
- Noack, Fritz. "Designs for Small Organs." Diapason (September 1971): 20-21.
- **Ogasapian, John and Russell, Carlton T.** *Buying an Organ*. AGO Pamphlet. Available from AGO National Headquarters, 475 Riverside Drive, Suite 1260, New York, NY 10115.
- **Ogasapian, John.** *Church Organs: A Guide to Selection and Purchase 1990.* Available through American Guild of Organists Headquarters, New York, NY.
- *Organ Historical Society*. OHS Guidelines for Conservation and Restoration. Available from OHS, P.O. Box 2681, Richmond, VA 23261. 1987.
- **Owen, Barbara.** "*The Congregational Singing Organ.*" Diapason (February 1981): 12-13.

ORGAN/CARILLON EQUIPMENT

Pipe Organs

Contact: *The Associated Pipe Organ Builders of America*. P.O. Box 155, Chicago Ridge, IL 60415; Phone: 800-472-5270; Website: www.apoba.com

The Presbyterian Association of Musicians encourages Presbyterian churches to regard the purchase of a pipe organ and/or cast bells as preferable.

Electronic Organs

Allen Organ Co., Macungie, PA 18062 Baldwin Piano and Organ Co., PO Box 2525, Dept. AGO-9, Cincinnati, OH 45201

Rodgers Organ Co., 1300 N. E. 25th Ave., Hillsboro, OR 97123

Carillons - Cast Bells & Electronic

I. T. Verdin Co. :2021 Eastern Avenue, Cincinnati, OH 45202
Paccard--Founderie de Cloches, Annecy, France
U. S. Distributor: Van Bergen Bellfoundries, Inc. 1851-A
Peeler Road, Dunwoody Place, Atlanta, GA 30338
Schulmerich Carillons, Inc., Carillon Hill, Sellersville, PA 18960
John Taylor and Co.: Bellfounders Ltd., Freehold Street, Loughborough, Leicestershire, LE11 1 R AR, England

PROFESSIONAL CONCERNS: EMPLOYMENT

American Guild of Organists. "A Musicians Guide to the Denominations" by the AGO Committee on Denominational Relations. Available from AGO National Headquarters, 475 Riverside Drive, Suite 1260, New York, NY 10115.

. "AGO Model Contracts." AGO Pamphlet. 1994. Free.

. "Church Musicians' Guide to the Denominations in Canada and the United States." AGO Committee on Denominational Relations and The Royal Canadian College of Organists, 1994. AGO Pamphlet: 475 Riverside Drive, Suite 1260, New York, NY 10115.

. "Compensation of the Church and Synagogue Musician." Available from AGO National Headquarters, 475 Riverside Drive, Suite 1260, New York, NY 10115.

. "*Music in the Church: Work and Compensation*." Seattle Chapter, AGO, Seventh printing, 1990. Available from AGO National Headquarters.

. "*Professional Concerns Handbook*" Edited by David Vogels in 1990. Successor to Professional Concerns publications Nos. 1 and 2. Available from AGO National Headquarters.

. "*Resources in Professional Concerns*" compiled by Maureen Jais-Mick. AGO Pamphlet: NY.

. "*The Work and Compensation of the Church Musician*" Boston Chapter, AGO, Twelfth edition, 1993. Available from AGO National Headquarters, 475 Riverside Drive, Suite 1260, New York, NY 10115.

Presbyterian Association of Musicians. "Guidelines for the Employment of Church Musicians in Presbyterian Churches." Presbyterian Association of Musicians, 100 Witherspoon St, Louisville, KY 40202.

Rees, Robin. Weary and Ill at Ease: A Survey of Clergy and Organists. Leominster, Herefordshire: Gracewing Books, 1993.

PROFESSIONAL ORGANIZATIONS

- The Associated Pipe Organ Builders of America. PO Box 155, Chicago Ridge, IL 60415; Phone: 800-472-5270; Website: www.apoba.com.
- Association of Anglican Musicians. Communication Office, 28 Ashton Rd., Fort Mitchell, KY 41017; Email: cr273@aol.com.
- Association of Lutheran Church Musicians. PO Box 6064, Ellicott City, MD 21042-6064; Phone: 800-624-2526; Email: admin@alcm.org.
- American Choral Directors Association. PO Box 6310, Lawton, OK 73506.
- American Guild of English Handbell Ringers, Inc., 601 West Riverview Ave., Dayton, OH 45406.
- American Guild of Organists, 475 Riverside Dr., Suite 1260, New York, NY 10115.
- Choristers Guild, 2834 W. Kingsley Rd., Garland, TX 75041.
- Hymn Society in the United States and Canada. 745 Commonwealth Ave., Boston, MA 02215-1401; Phone: 800-THE HYMN; Email: hymnsoc@ bu.edu.
- **The Organ Historical Society.** PO Box 26811, Richmond, VA 23261; Phone: 804-353-9226; Email: mail@organsociety.org.
- **Presbyterian Association of Musicians.** 100 Witherspoon St., Louisville, KY 40202; Phone: 502-569-5288 or 1-888-728-7228 xt 5288; Email: pam@pcusa.org; Website: www.presbymusic.org.
- United Church of Christ Musicians Association. PO Box 1350, Stratford, CT 06615-1350. Website: www.uccma.org.

PROFESSIONAL PUBLICATIONS

- **Call to Worship: Liturgy, Music, Preaching & the Arts.** The official journal of the Presbyterian Association of Musicians, published by the Office of Theology & Worship, Presbyterian Church (USA). 100 Witherspoon St., Louisville, KY 40202.
- Choral Journal. American Choral Directors Association, PO Box 6310, Lawton, OK 73506.
- Choristers Guild Letters. Choristers Guild, 2834 W. Kingsley Rd., Garland, TX 75041. (214)-271-1521.
- **Overtones.** American Guild of English Handbell Ringers, 601 West Riverview Ave., Dayton, OH 45406.
- **Reformed Worship.** Christian Reformed Church. CRC Publications, 2850 Kalamazoo SE, Grand Rapids, MI 49560-1433.
- The American Organist. American Guild of Organists, 475 Riverside Dr., Suite 1260, New York, NY 10115. (212)-870-2310.

The Hymn. The Hymn Society in the United States and Canada, Boston, MA.

The NATS Journal. The National Association of Teachers of Singing. 2800 University Blvd. North, JU Station, Jacksonville, FL 32211.

PSALMODY: PSALTERS

- Anderson, Fred R. Singing Psalms of Joy and Praise. Westminster Press: Philadelphia, PA. 1986.
- Augsburg Fortress. *Psalter for Worship: Cycle A / B / C*: Revised Common Lectionary. Minneapolis, MN: Augsburg Fortress, 1998.
- **Barrett, James E.** *The Psalmery: Gradual Psalms for Cantor and Congregation.* The Hymnary Press: Missoula, MT. 1982.
- **Bell, John L.** *Psalms of Patience, Protest and Praise.* The Iona Community. Published and distributed in North America exclusively be GIA Publication. Chicago, IL: GIA Publications, 1993.

Berthier, Jacques. Music from Taize. GIA Publications: Chicago, IL. 1980.

- Burkhardt, Michael. *Psalms for the Church Year*. St. Louis, MO: MorningStar Publishers, 1999. MSM-80-708.
- **Carroll, J. Robert.** *The Grail Gelineau Psalter: 150 Psalms and 18 Canticles.* GIA: Chicago, IL.
- **Chamberlain, Gary.** *The Psalms: A New Translation for Prayer and Worship.* Nashville, TN: The Upper Room, 1984.
- **Daw, Carl P., Jr. and Kevin R. Hackett.** *A Hymntune Psalter: Gradual Psalms: The Season after Pentecost.* New York, NY: Church Publishing, Inc., 1998.
- **Frost, Maurice.** *English and Scottish Psalm and Hymn Tunes.* Oxford Press: London. 1953.
- Gelineau, Joseph. 20 Psalms and Three Canticles. Numerous other psalm publications. GIA Publications: Chicago, IL. 1967.
- *Gradual Psalms: Lesser Feasts and Fasts.* Church Hymnal Series VI, Part V. Church Hymnal Corporation: New York, NY.
- Guimont, Michel. *Psalms for the Revised Common Lectionary*. Chicago, IL: GIA Publications, 1998, 2002. G-5616.
- Hallock, Peter and Crozier, Carl and Catherine. *Ionian Psalter*. Ionaian Arts, Inc., PO Box 259, Mercer Island, WA 98040.
- Haugen, Marty and Haas, David. Psalms for the Church Year. GIA: Chicago, IL. 1988.
- Hopson, Hal H. Psalm Refrains and Tones for the Common Lectionary. Carol Stream, IL: Hope, 1988.

ICEL Lectionary Music: Psalms and Alleluias and Gospel Acclamations for the Liturgy of the Word. GIA: Chicago, IL. 1982.

Isele, David Clark. Psalms for the Church Year. GIA: Chicago, IL.

Lutheran Book of Worship. Augsburg Pub: Minneapolis, MN. 1978.

- Marier, Theodore, ed. *Hymns, Psalms and Spiritual Canticles.* BACS Publishing Co.: Boston, MA. 1983.
- Marshall, Jane. Psalms Together I and II: Unison Antiphons for Choirs or Cantor and Congregation. Choristers Guild: Dallas, TX. 1986.
- Morgan, Michael. The Psalter for Christian Worship. Louisville, KY: Witherspoon Press, 1999.
- Patrick, Millar. Four Centuries of Scottish Psalmody. Oxford Univ: London. 1950.
- *Psalm Antiphons from the Lutheran Book of Worship.* Roger T. Petrich. Fortress Press, 2900 Queen Lane, Philadelphia, PA 19129.
- *Psalm Praise*. GIA: Chicago, IL. 1973. From Church Pastoral Aid Society, London.
- *Psalms for all Seasons: From the ICEL Liturgical Psalter Project.* NPM Publications: Washington, DC. 1987.
- *Psalms for Singing* (Twenty-six psalms with musical settings for congregation and choir): translation of psalms by Gary Chamberlain. The Upper Room: Nashville, TN.
- Psalms for the Church Year. Vol. 1, 2, 3. Celebration Series. GIA: Chicago, IL.
- *The Psalter Hymnal*. CRC Publications: 2850 Kalamazoo Avenue, SE, Grand Rapids, MI. 1987.
- *Rejoice in the Lord: A Hymn Companion to the Scriptures.* Edited by Erik Routley. Wm. Eerdmans Publishing Co: Grand Rapids, MI. 1985.
- *The Anglican Chant Psalter*. Alec Wyton, editor. Church Hymnal Corporation: New York, NY.
- The Plainsong Psalter. James Litton, editor. Church Hymnal Corporation: New York, NY.
- *"The Psalmody for the Day."* Fortress Press, 2900 Queen Lane, Philadelphia, PA 19129.
- *The Psalter: Psalms and Canticles for Singing*. Westminster Press: Louisville, KY. 1993.

Pulkingham, Betty. *Celebrate the Church Year with Psalms and Canticles.* Available from Cathedral Music Press, PO Box 66, Pacific, MO 60638.

The United Methodist Hymnal. Includes 100 responsorial psalm settings. United Methodist Publishing House: Nashville, TN. 1989.

Webber, Christopher. A New Metrical Psalter. Church Hymnal Corporation: 800 Second Avenue, New York, NY. 1986.

Williamson, Malcolm. *Psalms of the Elements: 20 Responsorial Psalms.* Boosey and Hawkes: New York, NY. 1976.

Willock, Christopher, S.J. Psalms for Feasts and Seasons: Settings of the Common Responsorial Psalms. Pastoral Arts Associates of North America: Nashville, TN. 1979.

Worship. 3rd ed. GIA Publications: Chicago, IL. 1986.

PSALM PERFORMANCE PRACTICE

Leaver, Robin A. *Ways of Singing the Psalms*. Collins Liturgical Publications. *Psalmody*. Reformed Liturgy and Worship 23, No. 1 Winter, 1989. RL&M Administration Office, The Ministry Unit on Theology and Worship, 100 Witherspoon St., Louisville, KY 40202.

PSALMS IN THE LITURGY

- **Bower, Peter,** ed. *Handbook for the Common Lectionary*. Geneva Press: Philadelphia, PA. 1987.
- Brink, Emily R. "Psalm Singing in the Christian Reformed Church." The American Organist (November 1986): 32-33.
- **Carroll, J. Robert.** *Guide to Gelineau Psalmody.* GIA Publications: Chicago, IL. 1979.
- **Daniels, Harold M.** "Presbyterians and the Psalms." The American Organist (Dec. 1986): 51.
- Holladay, William L. The Psalms through Three Thousand Years: Prayerbook of a Cloud of Witnesses. Minneapolis, MN: Fortress Press, 1993.
- Lawrence, Anthony, editor. *The Psalm Locator: Where to Find Songs Based on the Psalter.* Resource Publications, Inc. 160 E. Virginia St. #290, San Jose, CA 95112. 1986.
- McCann, J. Clinton, Jr. A Theological Introduction to the Book of Psalms. Nashville, TN. Abingdon Press, 1993.
- *Psalmody.* Reformed Liturgy and Worship 23, No. 1 Winter, 1989. RL&M Administration Office, The Ministry Unit on Theology and Worship, 100 Witherspoon St., Louisville, KY 40202-1396.

SOURCES: PUBLISHERS, SUPPLIERS, & WEBSITES

Sources: Publishers

- *Abingdon Press*, 201 Eighth Ave., South, PO Box 801, Nashville, TN 37202. (615) 749-6422.
- Augsburg Fortress. PO Box 1209, Minneapolis, MN 5440-1209. Church Hymnal Corporation, 800 Second Ave., New York, NY 10017.
- *Calvin Institute of Christian Worship*, 3201 Burton St. SE, Grand Rapids, MI 49526. (616) 526-6088. Website: worship@calvin.edu.

Choristers Guild. 2834 West Kingsley Rd., Garland, TX 75041.

- *Church Publishing Incorporated*, 445 Fifth Ave., New York, NY 10016. Customer Service (800) 242-1918.
- Wm. B. Eerdmans Publishing Company, 255 Jefferson Ave., SE, Grand Rapids, MI 49503.
- *GIA Publications*, 7404 South Mason Ave., Chicago, IL 60638. (800) GIA-1358 442-1358; (708) 496-3800; Website: www.giamusic.com.
- *Hinshaw Music*, Inc. PO Box 470, Chapel Hill, NC 27514. (919) 933-1691 Orders: (800) 568-7805.
- Hope Publishing Company, Agape Press, 380 South Main Place, Carol Stream, IL 60188. (312) 665-3200.
- International Commission on English in the Liturgy, 1234 Massachusetts Ave., NW, Washington, DC 20005.
- Lorenz Corporation, 501 E. Third St, Box 802, Dayton, OH 45401; (800) 444-1144
- MorningStar Music Publishers, 1727 Larkin Williams Rd, St. Louis, MO 63026.
- *Oxford University Press*, 200 Madison Ave., New York, NY 10016. (212) 679-7300.
- *The Pilgrim Press*. United Church of Christ. 700 Prospect Ave., Cleveland, OH 44115. Orders: 800-537-3394; Office: 216-736-3764; Website: www. pilgrimpress.com.
- The Church Hymnal Corporation, (See Church Publishing Incorporated above)
- *The Scarecrow Press*, Inc. 4501 Forbes Blvd, Suite 200, Lanham, MD 20706; (800) 462-6420.

Selah Publishing Company, Kingston, NY 12401. (800) 852-6172.

Taizé Community, 71250 Cluny, France. Tel: France (33) 85.50.30.02; Email: Taize@cpe.ipl.fr. Taizé's publisher in the USA is GIA Publications, 7404 South Mason Ave., Chicago, IL 60638. (708) 496-3800 / (800) GIA-1358.

The Upper Room, 1908 Grand Ave., PO Box 189, Nashville, TN 37202.

Walton Music Corporation: 170 N.E. 33rd St., Ft. Lauderdale, FL 33334.

Westminster / John Knox Press, Rights and Permissions, 100 Witherspoon St, Louisville, KY 40202. (502) 569-5052.

Witherspoon Press, Presbyterian Church (U.S.A.), 100 Witherspoon Ave., Louisville, KY 40202. (800) 524-2612.

Wm. B. Eerdmans Publishing Company, 255 Jefferson Ave., SE, Grand Rapids, MI 49503.

Sources: Suppliers

Choristers Guild, 2834 W. Kingsley Rd., Garland, TX 75041.

Sources: Websites

American Choral Directors Association: www.acdaonline.org American Guild of Organists: www.agohq.org Chorus America: www.chorusamerica.org Hymn Society in the United States and Canada: www.hymnsociety.org Presbyterian Association of Musicians: www.presbymusic.org Renewing Worship: Evangelical Lutheran Church in America: www.renewingworship.org/resources/principles/

WORLD MUSIC

- Black, Kathy. Worship Across Cultures: A Handbook. Nashville, TN: Abingdon Press, 1998.
- Hawn, C. Michael, compiler. *Halle, Halle: We Sing the World Round: Songs from the World Church for Children, Youth and Congregation.* Garland, TX: The Choristers Guild, 1999.

WORSHIP & LITURGY

- Barkley, John M. and John Gordon Davies. *The Worship of the Reformed Church*. Lightening Sources, Inc., 2002. ISBN: 0227170350.
- *Christian Reformed Church*. Authentic Worship in a Changing Culture. Grand Rapids, MI: CRC Publications, 1997.
- **Bower, Peter C.,** editor. *The Companion to the Book of Common Worship.* Louisville, KY: Presbyterian Church (USA), 2003.
- Bradshaw, Paul, editor. *The New Westminster Dictionary of Liturgy & Worship.* Westminster / John Knox Press, 2003. ISBN:0-664-22655-8.
- **Burkhard, John E.** Worship: A Searching Examination of the Liturgical Experience. Philadelphia, PA: The Westminster Press 1982.
- Byars, Ronald P. Christian Worship: Glorifying and Enjoying God. Louisville, KY: Office of Theology & Worship: Geneva Press, 2000.
 - . The Future of Protestant Worship: Beyond the Worship Wars. Louisville, KY: Westminster/John Knox Press, 2002. ISBN: 0-664-22572-1.
- Callahan, Kennon L. Dynamic Worship: Mission, Grace, Praise, and Power. San Francisco, CA: Jossey-Bass, 1994.
- Chapman, Dean. *How to Worship as a Presbyterian*. Louisville, KY: Presbyterian Publishing Corporation, 2001.
- *Christian Reformed Church*. Authentic Worship in a Changing Culture. Grand Rapids, MI: CRC Publications, 1997.

- Daniels, Harold M. To God Alone Be Glory: The Story and Sources of The Book of Common Worship. Louisville, KY: Westminster John Knox Press, 2003. ISBN: 0-664-50235-0.
- **Daniels, Harold, M.,** editor. *Worship in the Community of Faith: Liturgical Studies from the Perspective of the Contemporary Reformed Tradition.* Louisville, KY: The Joint Office of Worship, 1982.
- Dawn, Marva. "Reaching Out Without Dumbing Down: A Theology of Worship for the Turn-of-the-Century Culture." Grand Rapids, MI: Eerdmans, 1995.
 - _____. A Royal "Waste" of Time: The Splendor of Worshiping God and Being Church for the World. Grand Rapids, MI: Eerdmans, 1999.
- Day, Thomas. Why Catholics Can't Sing: The Culture of Catholicism and the Triumph of Bad Taste. New York, NY: Crossroad, 1990.
- **Doran, Carol and Thomas H. Troeger.** *Open to Glory: Renewing Worship in the Congregation.* Valley Forge: Judson Press, 1993.
 - . *Trouble at the Table: Gathering the Tribes for Worship.* Nashville, TN: Abingdon Press, 1992. ISBN 0-687-42656-1.
- Elkins, Heather Murray. Worshipping Women: Re-Forming God's People for Praise. Nashville, TN: Abingdon Press, 1994. ISBN 0-687-46402-1.
- Erickson, Craig Douglas. Participating in Worship: History, Theory and Practice. Louisville, KY: Westminster/John Knox Press, 1989. ISBN 0-8042-1900-1.
- **Fink, Peter,** editor. *The New Dictionary of Sacramental Worship*. Collegeville: The Liturgical Press, 1991.
- Frankforter, A. Daniel. Stones for Bread: A Critique of Contemporary Worship. Louisville, KY: Westminster/John Knox Press, 2001.
- Gilliss, Martha. Let Us Pray: Reformed Prayers for Christian Worship. Geneva Press, 2003. ISBN:0-664-50173-7.
- Hustad, Donald P. True Worship: Reclaiming the Wonder and Majesty. Harold Shaw Publishers, 1998. ISBN 0-87788-838-8.
- Joint Office of Worship, Presbyterian Church, U.S.A. Supplemental Liturgical Resources 1-7. Philadelphia, PA: Westminster Press, 1984-1992.

Service for the Lord's Day. Supplement Liturgical Resource No. 1, 1984.

Holy Baptism and Services for the Renewal of Baptism. Supplemental Liturgical Resource No. 2, 1985.

Daily Prayer. Supplemental Liturgical Resource No. 3, 1987 *Christian Marriage*. Supplemental Liturgical Resource No. 4, 1986.

- *The Funeral--Witness to the Resurrection*. Supplemental Liturgical Resource No. 5. 1986.
- Services for Occasions of Pastoral Care. Supplemental Liturgical Resource No. 6. 1990.

The Liturgical Year. Supplemental Liturgical Resource No. 7. 1992.

Lathrop, Gordon W. *Holy People: A Liturgical Ecclesiology*. Minneapolis, MN: Fortress Press, 1993.

_____. *Holy Things: A Liturgical Theology*. Minneapolis, MN: Fortress Press, 1993.

Law, Eric H. F. Inclusion: Making Room for Grace. St. Louis, MO: Chalice Press, 2000.

Leaver, Robin A. and Joyce A. Zimmerman, eds. *Liturgy & Music: Lifetime Learning*. Collegeville: The Liturgical Press, 1998. ISBN 0-8146-2501-0.

Liesch, Barry. The New Worship: Straight Talk on Music and the Church. Baker Books, 2001.

- Long, Thomas G. Beyond the Worship Wars: Building Vital and Faithful Worship. Washington: The Alban Institute, 2000.
- McKim, K. McDonald. Introducing the Reformed Faith: Biblical Revelation, Christian Tradition, Contemporary Significance. Louisville, KY: Westminster/John Knox Press, 2001.
- *Office of Theology and Worship*, PC(USA). Belonging to God: Catechism Resources of Worship. Louisville, KY: Westminster/John Knox Press, 2003. ISBN 0-664-50236.

. *Book of Common Worship*. Louisville, KY: Presbyterian Church (USA) and the Cumberland Presbyterian Church, Westminster/John Knox Press, 1993.

. Book of Occasional Services: A Liturgical Resource Supplementing the Book of Common Worship, 1993. Louisville, KY: Geneva Press, 1999.

- **Plantiga, Cornelius, Jr. and Sue A. Roseboom**, *Discerning the Spirits: Understanding and Evaluating Contemporary Worship Practices*. Calvin Institute of Christian Worship Liturgical Studies Series, Fall 2003.
- Ramshaw, Gail. Words Around the Fire. Chicago, IL: Liturgy Training Publication, 1990. ISBN: 0-929650-14-x.

. *Words Around the Font*. Chicago, IL: Liturgy Training Publication, 1994. ISBN: 1-56854-063-9.

. *Words Around the Table*. Chicago, IL: Liturgy Training Publication, 1991. ISBN: 0-929650-28-x.

- Saliers, Don E. *Worship and Spirituality*. Second edition. Akron, OH: OSL Publications, 1994. ISBN: 878-00927-3.
 - . Worship Comes to Its Senses. Nashville, TN: Abingdon Press 1996. ISBN: 0-687-01458-1.
- Sample, Tex. The Spectacle of Worship in a Wired World: Electronic Culture and the Gathered People of God. Nashville, TN: Abingdon Press, 1998.
- Schalk, Carl. First Person Singular: Reflections on Worship, Liturgy, and Children. St. Louis, IL: MorningStar Music Publishers, 1998.
- Schattauer, Thomas H., General Editor. Inside Out: Worship in an Age of Mission. Minneapolis, MN: Fortress Press, 1999.
- **Stookey, Laurence Hull.** Let the Whole Church Say Amen! A Guide for Those Who Pray in Public. Nashville, TN: Abingdon Press, 2001. ISBN: 0-687-09077-6.
- Webber, Robert E. Blended Worship: Achieving Substance and Relevance in Worship. Peabody, MA: Hendrickson, 1996.
 - _____. *Planning Blended Worship: The Creative Mixture of Old and New.* Nashville, TN: Abingdon, 1998.
- Westermeyer, Paul. *The Church Musician* (revised edition). Minneapolis, MN: Augsburg/Fortress, 1997. ISBN: 0-8066-3399-9.
- Lukas Vischer, editor. Christian Worship in Reformed Churches Past and Present. Grand Rapids, MI: William B. Eerdmans Publishing Co., 2002.
- White, James F. Christian Worship in North America: A Retrospective: 1955-1995. Collegeville, MN: Liturgical Press, 1997.
 - _____. Sacraments as God's Self Giving. Nashville, TN: Abingdon Press, 2001. ISBN: 0-687-09565-4.
- Willimon, William. Sunday Dinner: The Lord's Supper and the Christian Life. Nashville, TN: The Upper Room, 1981.
 - _____. Word, Water, Wine, and Bread: How Worship Has Changed Over the Years. Valley Forge: Judson, 1980.
- Witvliet, John D. Worship Seeking Understanding: Windows into Christian Practice. The Calvin Institute, 2003.
- Wren, Brian. Praying Twice: The Music and Words of Congregational Song. Louisville, KY: Westminster/John Knox Press, 2000.